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NARRATIVE REPORT

1. Message from Anthony Hope CPFA — Treasurer to County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority.

County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority remains committed to protecting
front line services to the public. The COVID-18 pandemic continued to present challenges
during 2021722 particularly the management of increased slaff sickness and fluctuations in
demand for our services, In addition, the Service continues 1o face considerable financial
pressures including a shortfall in council tax and business rates receipts due to the pandemic
together with cost pressures arising from increasing inflation which has the potential to result
in higher pay awards. The financial pressures faced by the Service are compounded by
uncertainty surrounding the level of government funding from 2023/24 onwards.

To set a balanced budget for next year (2022/23) it was necessary to draw £500,000 from
reserves which is clearly unsustainable on an on-going basis, Work is continuing through
the Emergency Response Review to identify further savings options to assist in balancing
the budget in fulure years.

This document (the "Statement of Accounts”) presents the published accounts for County
Dwrham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority {referred to as the “Authority” throughaout
this decument) for the year ended 31* March 2022,

It is my intention to provide the readers of these accounts with information about the money
that the Authority has received and spent during the financial year, that it has been
accounted for properly, that the financial standing of the Authority continues o be secure
and that the service delivered by the Authority continues to always meet the principles of
value for money.

The presentation of the accounts has been designed to assist readers in understanding and
interpreting the financial statements, which follow accounting standards and are, by their
nature, complex in some areas.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank officers of the Fire and Rescue Authority,
Durham County Council and Darlington Borough Council, who have co-operated to produce
thiz Statement of Accounts.

| hope that this document proves to be both informative and of interest to readers, The
Authority is kean to improve both the quality and suitability of the information provided, so
your feedback would be welcome. If you have any suggestions or comments on either the
format of the report or its contents, or if you would like any further information, please contact
my office:

Telephone 0191 375 5554
E-mail PAZddiire. gov.uk
Wirite to: The Treaswrer

County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority
Fira and Rescue Service Headquarters

Belmont Business Park

Durham

DH1 1TW

Anthony Hope CPFA
Treasurer to County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority
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2. Introduction

The purpase of the Statement of Accounts is to give electors, those subject to locally levied
taxes and charges, members of the Authority, employees, and other interested parties clear
information about the finances of the Authority. It is important in demonstrating the
stewardship of public money and shows the resources available and how they have been
used to deliver services.

The purpose of this Marrative Report is to provide a clear guide to the most significant
matters reported in the accounts. It explains the purpose of the financial statements that
follow and provides a summary of the Authorty’s financial activities during 2021/22 and its
financial position at 31 March 2022, This report fecuses on the matters that are of relevance
to the pnncipal users of the accounts. In addition to complementing and supplementing the
information provided in the accounts, it also provides a forward look at the issues that have
affected the development, performance, and position of the Authority during the financial
year, which are likely to have an impact in the fulure.

The Marrative Report includes:

Message from the Treasurer

Introduction

Background to County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority
Financial Performance 2021/22

Mon-Financial Performanca 2021/22

Operating Environment and Future Plans

COVID-18 Pandemic

Going Concemn

Statement of Accounts

o e BB i

3. Background to County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority

The Authority was established as a separate corporate body covering the County of Durham
and Darlington Borough under the provisions of the Durham Fire Services (Combination
Scheme) Order 1998, The Authority comprises members appointed by Durham County
Council and Darlington Borough Council. With effect from 1 April 2004, the Fire and Rescue
Authorty became a precepting authority as defined under the Lecal Government Finance
Act 1992,

4. Financial Performance 2021/22

Review of the Financial Year

Tha Authority's spending is planned and controlled by a rigorous budget and financial
management process. The Authority received resources direct from the Government in the
form of Revenue Support Grant and Non-Domestic Rates, with the balance of funding
coming from precepts on billing authorities for amounts chargeable to local taxpayers.
During 2021/22, the Authority's net revenue expenditure, which was met from the above
sources, was £29 408m, while spending on capital projects totalled £2.081m.
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The Authority's general reserve balance, which represents the sum set aside to meet
unforesean future circumstances, was £1.510m at 31 March 2022. This equates to 5% of
the 202223 net expenditure budget and is in line with the Authority's policy on reserves to
maintain a general reserve of 5% of net expenditure.

Financial performance against the approved budget is reported to elected members on a
quarterly basis throughout the year. Furher information on the Authority’s financial
performance is available on our website: www. ddfire.gov.uk,

Revenue Income and Expenditure

The estimated net revenue expenditure for 2021/22, to be met from Government Grants and
local taxpayers, was approved at E29.338m.

The following table summarises the actual revenue financial pesition for the year in

comparnison with the budget:

Original

Budget | Actual | Variance | Variance
Budget Heading £000 E£000 £000 %
Expenditure
Employees 24938 25,792 854 3.42
Premises 2,802 2,907 105 3.75
Transport 625 665 40 6.40
Supplies & Services 4 483 4,019 -464 -10.35
Contingencies 265 . =265 -100.0
Capital Financing 1,330 3,528 2,198 165.26
Provisions & write-offs - 53 53 100.0
Transfers to Reserves - 231 231 100.0
Total Expenditure 34,443 | 37195| 2752 7.99
Income
Government Grants -4,186 -4 478 -292 6.98
Other Income -697 -1,082 -385 55.24
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves 222 | 2227 -2,005 803.15
J0du] InEonS 5105| -7,787| -2.682 52.54
Nat Expencliture 29,336 | 29,408 70 0.24
Taxation and Non-Specific Grants Income -20.338 | -20.459 121 0.4
Cutturn - 51 51
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An explanation of the major variances is provided in the table below:

Ower Ower
spend [ spend |
lmn nmn Explanation for major variances
spend () | spend (-]
Em_ %

Employess B54 342 | In line with the govemment's policy on pulblic secior pay, no allowance
was made in the budget for pay awands. Howeves, firafghlers were
awarded a 1.5% pay award from 01 July 2021 and co siaff were
awarded a 1.75% pay award effective from 07 Apnil 2021 Additional
hoasrs. were also worked to cover sickness and provide support at
vaccinalion and testing centres during the pandemic which was no
|_anticipated when the original budget was sef.

Premises 105 375 | Etpendm:m on utiities was higher than anlicipated at the time the
budget was set because of the ongoing increases in energy cosls.

Transport 40 G40 | Due 1o the impact of inflation, there has been an increase in vehicle
running costs and ingurance costs, offset by a reduction in staff travel
CoEls.

Supplies & -484 =10.35 | A numiber of cost saving Initiatives heve been implemented during the

Services year,

Confingencies 365 -100.00 | The contingancies budget includes an allowancs for inflation and pay
awards which has helped offset the increased costs within other
headi

Capilal Financing 2,168 165.26 | Loan interesl was less than anbicipated when the budgel was sal due
to borrowing not being undartaken during the year, However, a
contributhon was made Trom revenue 1o finance capital expanditure
which was not anticipated in the ongenal budget,

Provisions & 53 100.00 | An additional provision for insurance claims was made during the year.

write-offs

Transhers to 231 10000 | Unspent contribubons and grant received during the year have baen

Reserves transferred to earmarked resenves o fund future activity.

Govemment B ] 6.98 | Additional grani income was received in relation 1o COVID-15,

Girants compensation for losl Income, Bullding Fire Safely, Pensions
Administration, and exiemal audd fees.

Dther Income -3B5 55.24 | The increase in other income was due to work camed out for thind
parties, the contribution ta the service from Vital Fire Solutions for work
carried oul by senice employess and changes made for Unwantad Fire
Signals.

Conbributions fraem «2 005 903,15 | Transiers were made from the New Risks Reserve, the Emergency

Reserves Services Mobile Communications Programme Resarve, and iha
Resilience Reserve o mesl the costs of projects and actvity
undertaken during the year. A transfer from the Modemisation Reserve
has also bean made to finance capital expenditure.

Taxation and Non- -121 D41 | Funding received was higher than inciwded In the oniginal budget

Specific Grants

Income

Total =51 -
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Capital Expenditure

The Authority approved a capital programme for 2021/22 of £2.189m. The actual capital
expenditure for the year was £2.081m, £0.108m less than the original budget. The following
table analyses the expenditure:

| Original
Budget Actual | Variance
Project Em Em £m
Vehicles, Plant & Equipment 1.189 0.998 -0.191
Land & Buildings 1.000 1.083 0.083
 Total Expenditure 2189 |  2.081 -0.108

The variances are set out in the table below:

Over Over
spend / spend /
Under Under Explanation for major variances
spend (-) | spend (-)
£m Y
) The underspend was due to changes to the planned
Vehicles, Plant & -0.191 -16.08 | timing of the replacement of some items of vehicles,
Equipment plant and equipment.
Expenditure was incurred on essential capital works
Land & Buildings 0.083 8.3 | which was not anticipated when the original budgst
was sel,
Total -0.108 4.93

Capital expenditure was financed by revenue contributions, external borrowing and capital
receipls,

The Authority's Capital Financing Requirement was £12.579m at 31 March 2022, Further
details are sel out in Note B.5 to the accounts.

Future Capital Commitments

The capital programme includes provision for improvemenis to premises and ICT, vehicles,

plant and operational equipment will continue to be renewed in accordance with agreed
raplacement programmes.

Current Borrowing Facilities and Capital Borrowing Provision

The Budget Report, incorporating Prudential Indicators and the Treasury Management

Strategy, submitted to the Authority meeting on 19 February 2021, detailed the 2021/22
borrowing limits for the Authority.
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The specific borrowing limits, set under the requirements of the Prudential Code, were as
follows:

+ Authorised Limit for External Debt for 2021/22 of £13.461m
» Operational Boundary for External Debt for 2021/22 of £12.237m

Pension Liability

The Authority’'s accounts are compliant with International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19)
which i basad on the principle that an organisation should account for retirement benefits
when it is committed to giving them, even if the actual payment of those benefits will be
many years into the future.

The net overall impact of lAS19 accounting entries is neutral in the accounts, However, the
overall financial position is in effect being distorted by future years' pension deficits, The fact
that all pension costs would never be incurred in one year (as implied by IA519) means the
Balance Sheet Net Worth is effectively being distorted by this reporling standard. If this
element is removed, then the Authority has a “real” net worth of £36.913m. The Authority
also has assets worth £51.274m and cash backed reserves of £5.750m, which support the
view that the Authority's Balance Sheet and finance are in fact healthier than implied by the
published accounts.

Further details of the impact of l1AS18 are sat out in note 8.16 to the accounts.
5. Mon- Financial Performance 2021/22

Performance is monitored by managemeant on an on-going basis and considered in detail by
elected members at the end of each guarter. A comprehensive suite of performance
indicators (PI's) are employed to measure both operational and corporate performance and
targets are set with the aim of achieving continuous improvement. During 2021722, 63% of
the strategic PI's met or exceeded their target level and 56% either maintained or improved
when compared to the previous year's performance.

Information an current parformance is reported to the Fire Authority on a quarterly basis and
further information is available on our website: www.ddfire. gov.uk.

6. Operating Environment and Future Plans

Looking ahead, the Authority’s revenue expenditure for 2022/23 is estimated at £30.202m,
together with a capital programme of £3.116m.

As there is a great deal of uncertainty surrounding the level of inflation, pay awards and
funding going forward, four medium-term financial plan scenarics have been modelled to
reflect the impact of changes to assumptions on the Authority's financial pesition. The
Authority has set a balanced budget for the forthcoming financial year (2022/23) however
this required an estimated drawing of £500,000 from reserves. There is a need to identify
further savings during the period 2023/24 to 2025/26 and work is ongoing through the
Emergency Response Review to identify further savings options to assist in balancing the
budget in future years.
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The main priority of the Authority continues ta be the protection of front-line services to the
public. Over the medium term, this neads to be balanced with the need for the Autharity to
reduce expenditure

The Policing and Crime Act has significant implications for Fire and Rescue Authorities. The
Act requires fire, police and ambulance services to collaborate, where the proposed
collaboration would be in the interests of their own efficiency and effectiveness and one or
more of the other services take the same view. The legislaticn alse makes provision for a
Police and Crime Commigsioner (PCC) to take responsibility for the fire and rescue service
in their area.

County Durham and Dadington Fire and Rescue Service has an excellent track record of
collaboration and has in the past secured government funding to progress several innovative
collaboration projects. This included funding for the building of a new quad station at Barnard
Castle which provides a joint facility for the Fire, Police, Ambulance and Mountain Rescue
Saervices.

Going forward, the service will continue to work with collaboratively with pariners to secure
further efficiencies to assist in protecting front line service provision,

7. COVID-19 Pandemic

Although the financial impact of the pandemic has been mitigated by the receipt of
governmeant funding any future costs incumed in relation te COVID-19 will be managed
initially using government funding (if available) and if necessary, the Resilience Reserve.

8. Going Concern

Each year, the Authority assesses whether it should be considered a "Going Concemn”, and
whather the accounts should be prepared on that basis. This assessment covers the period
of at least 12 months from the date of authorisation of approval of accounts.

The Code requires that a local authority's Statement of Accounts is prepared on a Going
Concern basis; that is the accounts should be prepared on the assumption that the functions
of the Authority will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

In assessing its ability to continue as a Geoing Concern, an organisation must consider its
financial performance. This should consider factors relating to historical, current and future
performance.

The future plans of the Authority are set out in Section 6 and demonstrate that:

« the Authority has set a balanced budget for 2022/23 and has a plan in place to
continue to deliver local services until at least 2023. On this basis, it is apparent that
the Authority remains a Going Concern,

« the Authority has demonstrated robust financial management through the level of
reserves it holds. This underpins its Going Concemn status.

« throughout the process fer the Medium-Term Financial Plan, no risks were identified
which would indicate that the Authority cannot continue as a Going Concern.
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Based cn the assessment undertaken and reported to those charges with governance of the
Authority:

» the Authority has a history of financial stability and ready access to financial
resources in the future.

= there are no significant financial, operating, or other risks that would threaten the
continuing operation of the Authority.

On this basis, the Authority is a Going Concern, and it is appropriate for the Statement of
Accounts to be prepared on that basis.

9. Statement of Accounts

The Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2021/22 is prepared in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK (the Code) 2021722

The Code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and has been
developed by the CIPFAJ LASAAC Code Board which is overseen by the Financial Reporting
Advisory Board.

The Code is based on approved accounting standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, except where these are inconsistent with specific statutory
requirements. The Code also draws on approved accounting standards issued by the
International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and the UK Accounting Standards
Board where these provide additional guidance. The Code has been prepared based on
accounting standards and interpretations in effect for accounting penods commencing on or
before 1 January 2021. This is with the exception of IFRS 16 Leases, which has been
daferred to the 2024725 Code.

This edition of the Code applies for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2021,
It supersedes the edition published on 1* April 2020 (the 2020/21 Code).

The overriding requirement of the Code remains that the Statement of Accounts gives a ‘true
and fair view of the financial position and transactions of the Authority.

The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 include the following:

* [Independent Auditor's Report
The report of the independent, external auditor on the Fire Authority's Statement of
Accounts,

« Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
This sets out the responsibilities of the Authority and the Treasurer and includes the
Treasurer's cerlificate,

« Group Accounts
The Group Financial Statements consolidate the performance and balances that
relate to the Autherty's subsidiary companies (County Durham and Darlington Fire
and Rescue Community Interest Company and Vital Fire Solutions Limited) into the
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Authority's Staternents. This allows the full picture of the Group activities to be
presented.

Movement in Reserves Statement

This statemant shows the movement in the year on the various reserves hald by the
Authorify. This is analysed into "usable reserves” (those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and “unusable reserves”. The Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing services,;
more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the
General Fund for the purposes of council tax sefting. The Net Increase [ Decrease
bafore Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund
balance before any discretionary transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves are made.

Comprahensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This discloses the income receivable and expenditure incurred in operating the
Authaority for the year, This is the accounting cost of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded
from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations, which may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position
is reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Balance Sheet

This shows the financial position of the Authority at the year end. The net assets of
the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the Reserves held. Reserves are
reported under two categories:

LUisable Reserves - those reserves which may be used to provide services,
subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use (for example, the Capital Receipts Reserve may only be used
to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

Unusable Reserves — those reserves which cannol be used to provide
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets were sold. It also includes reserves that
hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
“Adjustments batween accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.

Cash Flow Statement

This summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from the fransactions with
other parties for revenua and capital purposes. It shows how the Authority generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities, The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities
is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded
from taxation and grant income or from the receipts from services provided. Investing
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources

10
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which are intended to contribute to the future service delivery of the Authority. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on the future
cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

= Notes to the Accounts
The notes to the accounts are fundamentally important in the presentation of a trua
and fair view. They aim to assist understanding and have three significant roles:

o presenting information about the basis of preparation of the financial
stafements and the specific accournting policies used,

o disclosing infarmation required by the Code that is nof presented elsewhere
in the financial statements,

o providing informafion that is not provided elsewhere in the financial
statements but is relevant to the understanding of them. This applies fo
information that is material in a qualitative rather than quantitalive sense (for
example fransactions with Relaled Parties).

« Pension Fund Account

This sets out the financial position of the Fire Pension Fund at the year end and the
expenditure and income throughout the financial year. Notes providing additional
information follow the accounts.

= Glossary of Terms
A glossary of financial terms is provided to assist the reader’s understanding.

if you require this information summarised in other languages or formats,
such as Braille, large print or talking tapes, contact: 0191 375 5554

* D191 375 5554 A Sl o ph i el a5 ks el o i G5 B datey uf 8
AREABHREESTR , BT 0191 3755554

1 = Tem o Tuat o AERTTR 6R TR WINE T 0191 375 5554 TR R S

af? wm gw een w oar B 4 wed £ oW oo 0191 375 5554 T 9l WY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor's report to the members of County Durham and Darlington Fire
and Rescue Authority

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statemenis of County Durham and Darlinglon Fire and Rescue
Authority and its subsidiaries (Authority and Group) for the year ended 31 March 2022, which
comprize the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Staternent, Group Balance Sheet, Group Cash Flow Statemeant, Authority Movement in
Reserves Stalement, Authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Authority
Balance Sheet, Authority Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been apphed
in their preparation s applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

In our opinion, the financial stalements:

* gﬂhre a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and Group as at 31st March
22 and of the Authority and Group's expenditure and income for the year then anded; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (15As (LK)
and apphicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the Authority and Group in accordance
with the athical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far our opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing tha financial statements, we have concluded that the Treasurer's use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Basad on the work we have performed, we have nol identified any matenal uncertainties relating to
evenis or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast *;i?n'iﬁt:-ant doubt on the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve maonths from when the financial
statements are authorsed for issue.

Qur responsibiliies and the responsibilifies of the Treasurer with respect (o going concern are
described in the relevant seclions of this report.

Other information

The Treasurer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Governance Statement and information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s repodt therean. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, except o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thareon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with tha
financial statemenis or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated, If we identify such material inconskistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are
required {0 determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a

12
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material missiaternent of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatarment of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing {0 report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Treasurer for the financial statements

As explained mare fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for the
preparation of the Statement of Accounis, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2021/22, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Treasurer
is also responsible for such infernal control as the 5151 Officer defermines is necessary to enable the
praparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
BT,

The Treasurer is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdam 2021/22 and prepare the financial statements an a gaing conceamn
basis, on the assumption that the functions of the Authority will continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future, The Treasurer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is
appropriate for the Authority and Group to prepane its accounts on the going concern basis and
disclesing, as applicable, matters redated to going concern

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1545 (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lews and regulations. We design
procedures in line with cur responsibilities, outlined above, to delect material misstatemeants in
respect of imegularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of the Authority, we identified
that the principal risks of non-compliance with kaws and regulations related to the Local Governmeant
Act 2003 (and aessociated regulations made under section 21), the Local Government Finance Acts
of 1988, 1952 and 2012, and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, and we considerad the extent
to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial stalements.

We evaluated the Treasurer's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financkal
statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were
related o posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias
through judgements and assumplions in significant accounting estimates and significant aone-off or
unusual fransactions

Cur audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance
with laws and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements, Cur
audit procedures included bul were not limited to:

# discussing with managament and the Auwdit and Finance Committee, the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations;

s communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining
alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout our awdit: and

= considering the risk of acts by the Authority and Group which were confrary (o applicable laws
and regulations, including frawd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Cur audit procedunes in retation to fravd included but were not limited o

»  making enquiries of management and the Audit and Finance Committee on whether thay had
knowledge of any actual, suspecied or alleged fraud,

* gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to frawd;
s discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and

+ addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal
entry testing

There ara inherent imitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibality
fior the prevention and detection of imegularities including frawd rests with managemeant and the Audit
and Finance Commitbes. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as
thase may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal confrols.

We are also required to conclude on whether the Treasurer's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. We performed our work in
accordance with Practice Note 10; Audit of financial statement and regulanty of public sector bodees
in the United Kingdom, and Supplementary Guidance Note 01, issued by the National Audit Office in
September 2021.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporiing Council’s website at www fre org ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's rapart.

Report on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
affectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exceplion

We are required to report ta you if, in our view we are nof satisfied that the Authority has made proper
arrangemenis for securing economy, efficiency and effectveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2022,

We have not completed our work on the Authority's arrangements. On the basis of our work ta date,
having regard o the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021, we
have not identified any significant weaknesses in arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

We will report the outcome of our work on the Authority's arrangements in cur commentary on thosa
arrangements within the Auditor's Annual Report.  Qur audit completion cerificate will set out any
matters which we ara required ta report by axceplion,

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responstble for putting in place proper arrangements o secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectivenass of these arrangemenis

Auditor's responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

We are required under section 20{1){c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy
ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, We are nol required to consider, nor have we considered,
whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
elfectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance issued by the Comptrodler and Auditor General in December 2021.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit
Practice
We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if

;ﬂ;t'%lia a report in the public interast under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
4,

wea make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or

we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of tha Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014,

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Use of the audit report

This report is made sclely to the members of County Durham and Darlinglon Fire and Rescue
Authority, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as
set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published
by Public Sactor Audit Appaintments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the members of County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Autharity those matters we
are required ko sfate to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the members of
County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority, as 8 body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit cerificate until we have completad:

the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority's Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack for the year ended
31 March 2021, and consequently conclude the audit and issue the certificate for that period;

the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority's Whole of Government Accounts consalidation pack for the year ended
31 March 2022: and

the work necessary to satisfy ourselves that County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue

Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources,

Barker

Director
For and on bahalf of Mazars LLP

The Cornear

Bank Chambers

26 Mosley Street
Mewcastle upon Tyne
NE1 10F

Date: 30" Navembar 2022
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF
ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Authority's Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:

+ make arangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.
For the Fire and Rescue Authority that officer is the Treasurer;

= manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard it's assels;

+ approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Treasurer's Responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/ LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in UK 2021722,

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Treasurer has:

« selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently,
+» made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
« complied with the Code.

The Treasurer has also;

» kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

» taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
rregularities.

Treasurer's Certificate
| certify that these accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the

Authority as at 31 March 2022 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2022.

-

Anthony Hope CPFA Date 30/11/2022
Treasurer to County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority

Chairman's Certificate

| can confirm that these accounts were approved by the Authority at a meeting on 30"

November 2022, ; }%/
Chairman of the meeting approving the accounts Date 30/M11/2022
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

INTRODUCTION

County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Community Interest Company was
incorporated in 2013/14 and commenced trading during 2014/15.

Vital Fire Solutions Limited was incorporated in 201516, and the Authority purchased
£15,000 of share capital.

County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service Community Interest Company and
Vital Fire Solutions Limited are both 100% owned subsidiaries of County Durham and
Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority. The Directors of both companies are also senior
managers and members of the Authority. The Authonty does not have any associates.

The Group Financial Statements consolidate the performance and balances that relate to
the two companies into the statements of County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue
Authority, which allows the full picture of the activities of the group to be presented.

The Group Financial Statements include:

«  Group Movement in Reserves Statement

» Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
« Group Balance Sheet

» Group Cash Flow Statement

The group financial statements are presented in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS). The financial statements of both companies are presented
under FRS102; their accounts have been restated to comply with IFRS.
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the Authority's single entity usable and
unusable reserves, and the Authority’s share of the Group Reserves.

() (=) id} L] Authority's
4] Capital Total ) Tatal Shara of Tatal
Fund Earmarked | Receipts Usabile Unusable | Authority | Subsidiary Group
Balance | Reserves | Unappliod | Resgrves | Reserves | Roserves Regsrves | Reserves
(0] 1 [v] £000 EQ00 £000 EDOD £000 E0 £000
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,458 4,473 - 59321 | -370,318 | -384 385 &5 | 364,333
Movaarant i rederves 200021
SurplusDaeficit [-) on peovision -16.424 - 16424 -16,424 -64 | 16,478
of sanvices
Oihar Comprahensive - - - -20,232 -0, 232 = | 20,232
Expendiure and Incoma
Toltal Comprehensive «16, 424 - - =16,424 =20,232 -36 655 <B4 | 36,710
Expenditure and Income
Sdjustmants babsesn 18,187 18,187 -18,187 - - -
@ocounling basis and funding
under regqulations
Hel IncreasaDecrease-) 1,763 = - 1,763 =38.419 -36,656 <5 | 36,710
befons Transfors to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers to (-] / fram -1, 763 1.763 Z . N 5
Earmarked Feganes
Increasa/Dacreass (-} in year = 1,763 - 1,763 | -38,418 36,656 =5 [ «36,710
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,459 6,236 - 7,695 | -408,737 | -401.,042 1 | 401,043
Mavement in reserves 2011722
SurphusDelick (-) on provision 14 450 -14 450 14,450 <14 450
of aedvioes
Caher Comprehenshon - - 11,777 11,777 - 11,777
Exponditur and Incoms i =
Tatal Comprehensiva <14 450 - =14 450 11,777 -2 BT3 - -2 673
Expanditune and Income
Adjurstmants babwesn 12,506 12505 | 12,605 3
accaurting basis and funding
undar regulations. -
Het Increass/Decreass]-) 1,945 = - -1,945 T28 2673 - =2, 673
before Transfoers to
Earmarked Roserves
Translers ba [-) / frem 1,586 -1,508 - =
Earnarked Rassrves o
Increase/Dacreass [-] in year 51 aK T N -1,945 «T2E 2,673 - 2,673
Balance al 31 March 2032 1,510 4 240 5,750 | -409.455 | -403,T718 1| 403,716
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in
providing services and managing the Group during the last year. It includes all day to day
expenses and related income on an accruals basis.

0 2001 202021 [ Gross Expenditure, Gross 2021122 02232 FrFalFr]
Gross Income Met Income and Mot Gross income Mat
Expanditurs £000 Expenditure | Expenditure on continuing | Expenditure £ Expaniditure
E000 E00Q __ operations £000 E0gh |
20,838 - 20,828 | Employses 1, X5 . 31,2890
2880 - 2 EA0 | Premisas 2,907 . 2,807
L[] 10 | Teanspor B85 - 58
4,603 s 4,603 | Supplies & Services 4,078 - 4,078
-3 - 34 | Pravisioes 53 - 53
38 - 3,51 | Capital Financing 1,581 - 1,681
= -5 022 5,022 | Income - -4 576 4 576
41,108 -5,022 36,084 | Mot Cost of Service 40,554 4 578 36,018
Ciher Operating Income &
Expenditure
5 -5 | Gain {-} / Loss on disposal of -
nof-current assets; Property,
Plard & Eguipmant
= 5 -5 | . =
Financing and Investment
Income & Expanditure
. = | Irierest payabis - dabt 41 41
T4T T4T | Imieses) payabie an FFI TE 723
126 126 | Genlingeni Rents = PFI 134 154
BOT2 9,072 | Mef inbarast on the defined BET2 LT
berefit kabilgy
K 4 -4 | Investmant inbarest income - 3 -3
8,45 4 9,541 9,570 -3 9,567
Taxation & Men-specific
Grants Income
Recogrised capilal grans & =101
coniributions
-17.847 | Precepts =18 842
5556 | NMDR -1.610
1,658 | Non Ring-fenced -1,083
Gavemmant Grants
-3480 | REG «% 45D
- I =31,135
16,369 | Surplus [-) F Deficlt on 14,450
Provision of Sarvices
16,548 | Re-measuraments of the net «7 BG4
defined benolit Eability
31584 | Daficit-}'Surphss on 4113
revaluation of Property, Plant
& Equipeent
20,232 | Oiher Comprehensive 414,777
Incoma and Expanditure
36,601 | Total Comprohensive 2673
Income and Ex e
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

GROUP BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the asset and liabilities

recognised by the Group. The net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched
by the reserves held by the Group.

An s As at
31 March 3021 31 March 2022
EBDD E£000 E000 EQ00
134 Intangible Assats T
Proparty, Plant & Equipment
33,348 Land & Bulldings 38,117
£.550 Vihicla, Plant, Furnitre & Equipment n_agi
P Surplus Asasls
158 Aassts Under Consiruction .
Long-tarm Deblors -
40,253 |Total Long-term Assats 44 536
&7a Invenioies 1]
£ 584 Shor-lem Deblars 4,345
2009 ___|Cash & Cash Equivalents 1.470
8,283 |Total Current Assets 6,500
] Sheet-leem Barnawing A
=5, 585 Shor-ieem Creddors o, Oripd )
=5, 708 |Total Current Liabilities 8117
41,838 |Total Assets less Current Liabilities 45,210
314 Prowisions -30E
-1 857 Lang-barm Bomowing -1,554
5,408 Diefarred Liahility = PFI 5,235
24 Other Deferred Liabiltes 812
-434 158 Pansion Liabilgy (18519) —HEIJ.EEE
443,871 |Total Long-term Liabilities 449,935
=401, 043 (Mot Assots 403 T16
7584 Uaabie Reserves 5.749
-408, 737 Unusable Reserves -409 465
-401,043 | Total Resarves =403, 716
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities.

20020021 2021822
£000 OPERATING ACTIVITIES g0B0 |
16,369 | MWel surplus (-} or deficil on the provision of sarvices 14,450
ABATT | Adjustments ta ret surplus or defich on the provision of senvices for non-cash =16, 232
mgvements

26 | Adust for ftems received in the net surplus or defict on the pravisian of services 121

irat are irvestng and finandng activities
-1,782 | Met cash flows from oporating activities -1.661
5400 | Investing Activities 1,560
4,774 | Financing Activities 0
1,844 | Met increase (-) or decreasa in cash and cash equivalents 558
3873 | Cash and cash equivalents ai tha beginning of the reparting pericd 2.028
2,028 | Cash and eash equivalents at the ond of the reporting period 1,470
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
1. Group Accounting Policies

The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of
Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 issued by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA),

The accounting policies used in preparing the Group Accounts are largely those used by
County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority. In order to align the accounting
policies of group entities with those used by the Authority and ensure consistency of
accounting treatment across the group, the following policies have been adopted:

Consolidation of Subsidiaries

Subsidianes have been consolidated using the acquisition accounting basis. This is a full
line by line consclidation of the financial transactions and balances of the Authority and its
subsidiaries. To avoid overstating the figures in the group financial statement, all
transactions and balances between the members of the group have been eliminated.

International Financial Reporting Standards

The Authority produces its financial statements in accordance with IFRS. As the companies
produce their financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP, their financial statements
have been adjusted to reflect IFRS where any changes have a material effect on the
presentation of the Group Financial Statements.

2. Officers’ Remuneration

There is no remuneration for Directors of County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue
Service Community Interest Company or Vital Fire Selutions Limited.

3. Audit Fees

Audit feas owing to additional work required for the audit of the group accounts are disclosed
in Note 7.7.

Group Adjustments

The following transactions have been eliminated from the Group Financial Statements:
During 2021/22, County Durharm and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority supplied goods
and services with a value of £743 lo County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue
Community Interest Company.

Goods and services with a value of £310,979 were supplied by County Durham and
Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority to Vital Fire Solutions Limited during 2021/22. Vital
Fire Solutions provided £8,423 of goods and services to the Authority.

These transactions have been eliminated from the Consolidated Income and Expenditure

Statement in the Group Accounts. In addition, intra company deblors and creditors have
bean adjusted for in the Balance Sheet.
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Authority, analysed into ‘'usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure
or reduce local taxation) and "unusable reservas’.

The Surplus/ Deficit (-) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, These are different from the statutory amounts required

to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax setting.

The Net Increase/ Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the
statutory General Fund balance before discretionary transfers to or from Earmarked
Reserves are undertaken by the Authority.

(a) <} (d} {9} (g
Ganaeral {bj Capital Capital Tatal if Total
Fund Earmarked Grants Receipts Usakble Unusable | Authority
Balance Ruesgrees Unapplied Unapplied Roeserves | Reserves | Reserves
E000 £004 000 £000 E004 EBO0 £000
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,459 6,236 - T.695| -408,737 -401,042
SurplusDeficit (-) on provision -4, 450 - -14, 450 14,450
of sarvicas
Ciher Comprehensise B - 1,777 11,777
Expendiiure and Income
Total Comprehensive «14,450 - «| 14,450 11,197 -2,673
Expenditure and Income
Adjustments between 12, 505 - 12 505 -12.505 =
accounting basis and funding
under regqulations (Mobe 6.1)
Met Increase/Decrease (=) 1,845 = 1,845 -f28 -2,673
before Transfers to
Earmarked Reseryes
Transhers 10 (=) | frgem 1,866 -1,508 - -
Earmarked Reserves (Mole
8.18)
increaseiDecrease (-] in year 51 1,996 - 1,945 -T28 -2,673
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,510 4,240 - E 750 -409.485 403,715
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Comparatives for 2020/21 are as follows:

(a) =] (d} L] =]
Ganaral 1=} Capital Capltad Tatal Toital
Fumnd Earmarked Grants Receipts Usable Unusable | Authority
Balance Reserves Unapplied Unapplied | Ressrves | Resarves | Ressrves
£000 £000 E000 £000 ECDD EQOD £000
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,459 4473 5832 -370,318| -364 386
surplusDafhcit (-) on provision 16,424 - 16,424 - -16.424
of servicas
Other Comprehensive - -| -20232| -20232
Expenditure and Income
Total Comprehensive -6 424 -16,424 20,232 -36,656
Expenditure and Income
Adjusiments batwaan 18187 - - 18,187 -18,187
accounting basis and funding
under regulations (Mole §.1)
Het IncreaselDecroasa (-} 1.763 - 1,763 -38.419 -36, 658
before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transhers to (-) / from -1,763 1,763 -
Earmarked Reserves (Mola
8.18)
increaseiDecrease (-} in year ; 1,763 1763| -38.419| -36.656
Balanca at 31 March 2021 1,458 5,216 - T.B95| -408.T7aT| -401,042
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from
taxation, Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this
may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.
The presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is based upon
the organisational structure that reflects the way the business is managed and operated. For
the Authority, this means that income and expenditure included in the net cost of services
has been analysed across subjective headings.

0 20T 2021022 FLFRTFF)
Giroas ol pa ] Mt Gross Expandijure, Groas Income Gross 2020 e
Expandiure Inecens Expandifure | and Met Expersdilure of Expanditun income | Expenditure
£000 200 opeTations £DOD E000
29,801 25,801 | Employess 31,257 30 5T
2580 . 2 B&0 | Premises 2,507 2,907
510 - 810 | Transped [HE B85
4 565 - 4 558 | Supples & Sedvices 4,014 4019
=34 - -34 | Provishons 53 - x|
3.5 = 3,521 | Capilad Finarcng 1,591 - 1,581
= 4,904 =4,904 | Income -1 4474 -4 A4
41,043 =4 B4 368,139 | Het Cost of Service 40,492 | 4474 36,018
Cthar Oparating income &
Expenditire
- -5 f | Gain (=) { Loss on @sposal of non- =
cument assets: Property, Plant &
Equipmsnt (Mot 7.2)
-5 & e
Financing and Investment
Income & Expanditure
- « | Interest payable on ekt 1] 41
747 747 | Interest payabie on PFI T3 T3
128 126 | Contingent Rents = PFI 134 134
2,07 B.07Z | Matwienest on the defined benefi 8672 BET2
liaksl
- = | =i} Imﬁmlwﬂr&u =4 ] - =} =3
9,945 =4 RS 4,870 = | 8,567
Taxation & Non-specific
Grants Income
Recognisad capkal grants and =101
contnbubons
=17.847 | Pracapls (Mote 7.12) =18,842
-6,558 | NNDR -7.810
-1,668 | Mon Ring-fenced Government -1.0&3
Gramis
=3.480 | RSG5 -3 A450
=28 681 31,136
16,424 | Surplus (=) { Deficit on Provision 14 4580
of Sarvices
18,848 | Re-measwemants of the net -7, 654
definad Banali labilty (Mote 8.20)
3,584 | Daficiti-ySurpiss an revaluation of 1113
Property, Plart & Eguipment
30,232 | Odher Comprehonshoe Income 414777
and Expanditung
36,655 | Total Comprehensive Income 2673
and Expanditurs
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BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheel date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are
matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories.

The first category of reserves are usable reserves, |.e. those reserves that the Authority may
use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only
be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

The second category of reserves are those that the Authority is not able to use to provide
sarvices, This category of reserves includes:

+ reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation
Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assels are sold;

= reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

Az al As at
31 March 31 March
2021 2022
E0D0 £E000 E0D0 E000
134 Inlangibds Asseds (Mol B 1) 70
Property, Plant & Equipment
33,344 Land & Buildings {Mote 8.2) 381917
6,550 “ehicle, Plant. Furnitune & Ecuipment (Moba §.2) 6,626
23 Surplus Assels (Naole B.2) 23
158 Assals Linder Construdtion (Nole 8.3) =
15 Laong-term Invesiments (Mate 8.1 158
- Long-term Debtors (Mote B.9) -
40,268 | Total Long-term Assois 44 851
GEA Emeenicaies (Nobe B.8) g¥o
& 651 Short-term Dabiors (Mabe B.8) 4 381
1,917 Cash & Cash Equaalents (Note 8.10) 1372 |
8,235 | Total Current Asselis 6823
P Shorl-ieamn Barmowing (Mobe B11) 2%
-5.552 Short-lerm Credilors (Mote 8.11) B 5,031
5,675 | Total Curment Liakilities =5, 084
42,83 | Total Assels less Current Liabilities 4, 230
314 Peoreisicns (Mobe B.13) ~306
.87 Lang-tarm Borrowing [Mote 8. 14) 1,954
-G.458 Dedarred Liability = PFI (Mote 8.14) £, 235
B4 Other Dederned Liabdilios (MNote 8. 14) 812
-4 34 158 Pansion Liabiliy (LA519] {Meba B.16) 440 626
443,87 | Total Long-term Liabdlities =449,935
ﬂﬁ Mal Agsals 403, 715
7855 Usable Reserves (Mol 8.17) 5750
408 737 Unusable Reserves (Nols B.17) 409465 |
401,042 | Total Resarves FTAR T
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses
cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant

income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority.

Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for
resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority's future service delivery. Cash
flows ariging from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by

providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

I b )
| ok OPERATING ACTIVITIES i
16,424 | Mot swplus (=) or deficit an the provison af sanvices 14,450
18,226 | Adjusimants o ned surpdus or deficit on the provision of Safmtes -16,246
for man-cash mowemsants (Mole 8.1}
26 | Adpust for Bems recened in tha pet surpliss or daficit on tha 1
provisicn of services that are investing and Gnancing activilies
1,776 | Mot cash flows from operating activities -A,87T8
5400 | Invasting Activities (Mobe ©.3) 1,950
A, 774 | Financing Actiites (Hote §.4) 260
1,850 | Met increase (-] or decrease in cash and cash equivalents £45
3,767 | GCash and cash equsvalents at the beginning of the reporing 1,917
pedied
1,817 | Cash and cash aquivalents at the end of the repaing 1372
period (Nobe 8.10)
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority's transactions for the 2021/22 financial
year and its positicn at the year end of 31 March 2022, The Authority is required to prepare
an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which
require accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
praclices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

The Statements reflect the requirements of general accounting principles and concepts of:

« Relevance - the financial statements provide information about the Authority's
performance and position that is useful to the users of the accounts to assess the
stewardship of public funds and for making economic decisions.

« Reliability - the financial information faithfully represents the substance of the
transactions, the activities underlying them and other events that have taken place
are free from deliberale or systematic bias and material error and have been
prudenily prepared.

« Comparability - the information has been prepared consistently and with adequate
disclosures so that it can ba compared with prior years and other Fire Authorities.

= Understandability - the statements have been prepared to ensure they are as easy
to understand as possible.

« Materiality - the statements disclose items of a certain size and nature such that
they provide a fair presentation of the financial position and transactions of the
Authority.

+ Accruals - other than the cash flow statement, the financial statements report
transactions that have been recorded in the accounting period for which the goods
and services were received or supplied rather than in which the cash was received
or paid.

* Going Concern - the financial statements have been prepared on the assumption
that the Authority will continue in operational existence for the foresesable future,

* Legality - where the accounting principles and specific legislation requirements are
in conflict, the financial statements have been prepared to reflect legislative
requirements.

The accounting policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices that

specify how the effecis of transactions and other events are reflected in the financial
statements of the Authority. Consistent accounting policies have been applied both within

28



NOTES TO CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the year and between years. Where accounting policies are changed, this has been
disclosed separately.

1.2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

™

revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it iz probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority;

revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can reliably
measure the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority,

supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried
as inventories on the Balance Sheet,

expanses in relation to services raceived (including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made;

interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather that the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract;

where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected;

a de minimus level of £1,000 is set for the recognition of accruale;

there is no accrual made for petty cash at the year end. This is because the value of
petty cash fransactions remains consistent and of low value month on month. The
Autharity ensures that 12 accounting periods are included within each financial year.

Under International Financial Reporting Standard 15 (IFRS15) Revenue From
Contracts with Customers, the Authority recognises revenue from any contracts with
service recipients in the financial year in which the service is provided, in accordance
with the performance cbligations of the contract.

1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that
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mature within three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant rigk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority's cash management.

1.4  Prior Peried Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates
and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in
the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other evenis and conditions on the Autherity’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwizse) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

1.5 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following
amounts to record the cost of holding property, plant and equipment during the year.

+ depreciation attributable to the assets used by the Authority;

= revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the Authority where there are
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be
written off;

= amortisation of intangible assels attributable to the Authority.

The Authority is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue tewards the reduction in its overall borrewing requirement {equal to an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory
guidance). Depreciation, revaluation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRF), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movernent in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

1.6 Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable during Employmant

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settied within 12 months of the year end.
They include benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
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bonuses and non-monetary benefits for cumrent employees. They are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employee renders service to the Authority. An accrual is
made for the cost of heliday entitiements (or any form of leave) earned by an employee but
not taken before the year end. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement

g0 that benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence
OCCuUrs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision
to accept voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the Net Cost of
Service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority is
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or making an
offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

When termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the nolional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.

Post Employment Benefits
Employees of the Authorty are members of four saparate pension schemes:

« the 1992 Fire Pension Scheme for Firefighters which is unfunded;

= the 2006 Fire Pension Scheme for Firefighters (including the Retained Modified
Schemea) which is unfunded,

« the 2015 Fire Pension Scheme for Firefighters which is unfunded,
« the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Durham County Council.

All four schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions),
earned as employees working for the Authority.

Discretionary Benefits (Local Goevernment Pension Scheme)

The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirement. Any liabilities, estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff, are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and

accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.
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The Fire Pension Scheme for Firefighters

The Firefighter's Pension Scheme for fire officers is an unfunded defined benefit scheme
administered by County Durham and Darlingten Fire and Rescue Authority, meaning that
there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be
generated (o meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

Under the Firefighter's Pension Scheme Order 2006, if the amounts receivable by the
pension fund for the year are less than amounts payable, the Fire Authority must annually
transfer an amount to meet the deficit to the pension fund. This cost is then met by Central
Government. If, however, the pension fund is in surplus for the year, the surplus is required
to be transferred from the pension fund to the Fire Authority. This surplus is then repaid to
Central Government.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Pension Scheme for support staff, administered by Durham County
Council, is a funded defined benefit career average scheme, with any benefits earned up to
31 March 2014 continuing to be calculated on a final salary basis. This means that the
Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to
balance the pension liabilittes with investment assets.

The Authority recognises the costs of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services section
of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are eamed by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payabile in the year,
g0 the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve measures the
beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on
the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

1.7 Events after the Balance Sheat Date

Evenis after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourabile,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

+ those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period = the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events:

= Ihose that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category
of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes showing the
nature of the events and their estimated financial effect,

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflecied in the Statement
of Accounts.
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1.8 Financial Instruments

The accounting treatment of Financial Instruments reflects the requirements resulting from
the implementation of International Reporing Standard 9 (IFRSS) Financial Instruments.

Fair value measurements are based upon the following valuation techniques:

» Leval 1 =the financial instrument has an active market, with guoted prices for similar
instruments

s Level 2 - there is some directly observable market information, other than that
available for Level 1 instruments

+ Level 3 — no market information is available, so valuation requires significant
judgement by management.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrumant, or, in the case of creditors, when the
goods or service have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability
has been paid or otherwise discharged.

They are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost.

For the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable {plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year to
which it relates, according to the loan agreement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are categorised according to the intention of use when the asset was
purchased:

s« Amortised Cost — held to collect contractual cash flows of principle and interest on
specific dates;

= Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income — held to collect contractual cash
flows and sell the financial asset on specified dates;

» Fair Value Through Profit or Loss — Achieve objectives other than to collect
cantraciual cash flows.

The financial assets of the Authority are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument, or, in the case of
debtors, when the goods or services have been provided or delivered. Financial assels ara
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets are reviewed and
any expected losses are calculated annually for any assets with a significant credit risk. The
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subsequent impairment / loss allowance, where material, is then treated according to the
asset classification:

« Amortised Cost — assels are reduced by the value of the expected losses
and reflected in their carrying amount;

» Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income - assets have their loss
allowance recognised in the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve;

« Fair Value Through Profit or Loss — assets have their loss allowance
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

1.8 Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reascnable
assurance that:

« the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
» the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have bean
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor,

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

1.10 Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in production or supply of goods

or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's polential to
deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred. A de minimis level of £5,000 is in place for the
recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Measurament

Assets are initially measured at historic cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use.

Property, Plant and Equipment are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in
accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued
by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Property, Plant and Equipment are
classified into the following groupings:

« Operational Assets Land and buildings
Viehicles, plant and equipment

» Non=Operational Assets Assets under construction
Surplus assets held for disposal
Assets held for sale

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

» operational land and buildings and other operational assets at current value,
determined as the amount that would be paid for the assels in its existing use;

« surplus assets held for disposal at current value, determined as the amount that
would be paid for the assets for its highest and best use from a market participant’'s
perspective and;

» assels under construction at depreciated historical cost until brought into
commission.

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature
of an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value.

Where non-properly assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as an estimate of current value.

Increases in valuations are matched by a credit to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains.
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Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

« where thera is a balance of revaluation gains for the assel in the Rewvaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up
to the amount of the accumulated gains) and;

« where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

An assessment is made at the year end to determine whether an asset may be impaired. If
it may, and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount
of the assel is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an
impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, the accounting entries are as follows:

« where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated balance);

« whera there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeant,

Where the impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the
original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.

Disposals

When it becomes probable that the camrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and current value less cosls to sell. Where there is subsequent
decrease to current value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Gains in currant
value are recognised only up te the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus
or Deficit on Provisions of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as an Assel Held for Sale, they are

reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount
before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
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revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale,
and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision net to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal, so netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal. The written-off value of the disposal is
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movemant in Reserves Statement so
as not to impact on Council Tax. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Receipts from disposal of assets are categorised as Capital Receipts and credited to the
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital investment.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment with a determinable finite
life by allocating the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet over the pericds expected to
banefit from their use. Freehold land, assets with an estimated life in excess of 50 years and
assets under construction are not depreciated.

Annual depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis as valuation less residual value,
divided by the estimated useful life of the asset. The useful lives of properties vary from 15
to 100 years; and that of vehicles, plant and equipment between 3 and 15 years. In rare
casas, certain specialised equipment may be attributed a longer useful economic life.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost
is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated
geparately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account,

1.11 Donated Assets

Donated assets received by the Authority are recognised immediately on receipt at current
value as Property, Plant and Equipment. The opposite entry to this transaction (i.e. the gain
to the Authority on receipt of the asset) is recognised as income in the relevant service line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, The Code notes that the
exception to this is to the extent that the Authority might not meet the conditions attached to
the donated asset, In such circumstances, the income relating to the assets will need to be
recognised in the Donated Asset Account. The income will subsequently be recognised in
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the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority has satisfied the
conditions of donation,

1.12 Intangible Assets

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled
by the Authority (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the
Authority for more than one financial year.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible
asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement,

1.13 Basis of Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value
and include uniforms, operational equipment, catering stock, smoke alarms, furniture stock,
stationery, oil, diesel and vehicle spares.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average costing formula.

1.14 Accounting for Leases - Authority as Lessee
Operating Leases

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating
leases. Rentals payable are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased assets. Charges
are made on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Where the operating lease
includes a rent free period, the benefit is carried forward as a deferred liability to be released
evenly over the life of the lease,

1.15 Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the
supply or service, in accordance with the Authority's arrangements for accountability and
financial performance,

1.16 Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

PFl and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for
making available the Properly, Plant and Equipment needed to provide the services passes
to the PF| contractor. As the Authority is deemed to control the services that are

provided under its PFl schemes, and as ownership of the Property, Plant and Equipment
will pass to the Authority at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Authority
carries the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant
and Equipment,

The enginal recognition of these assels at fair value, based on the cost lo purchase the

Property, Plant and Equipment, is balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due
to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment.
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The annual amounts payable to the PFl operators are analysed into five elements:

« fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

« finance cost — an interest charge of 10.74% on the outstanding Balance Sheet
liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

« contingent rent — increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during
the contract, debited to the Financing and Investment Incoma and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

= payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards
the PF| operator (the profile of write downs is calculated using the same principles
as for a finance lease) and;

» lifecycle replacement costs — proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the
Balance Sheet as a prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property,
Plant and Equipment when the relevant works are eventually carried out.

1.17 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authorty a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
For example, potential legal liabilities arising from claims.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Autherity becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the

expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet, Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year -
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made) the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service,

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place thal gives the Authority a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the cccurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities
also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannat
be measured reliably. Centingent liabilities are not recegnised in the Balance Sheet but
disclosed in a note to the accounts.
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1.18 Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingancies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus
or Defict on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Stalement so that there is no net charge against Council Tax for the
expenditure.

The Authority's policy for reserves is that the Authority will:

+ set aside sufficient sums in Earmarked Reserves as it considers prudent to do so;

= aim to maintain General Reserves of 5% of the Net Expenditure; currently £1.510m
Earmarked reserves relating to Pensions, Modemisation, Community Safety, Resilience,
Insurance, New Risks, Civil Resilience, Training, IT Projects and Strategic Finance (Funding
Pressures) were held as at 31 March 2022 together with a General Revenue Reserve.
1.19 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)
Where the Authority has received capital grants which have been applied to REFCUS, they
have been accounted for as revenue grants in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, even if described as capital grants by the giver of the grant.

Income is posted to the line(s) that the qualifying expenditure is charged to, in the Net Cost
of Service,

Transactions are transparent in the note detailing the components of the Adjustments
between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations line in the Movement in
Reserves Statemeant.

1.20 VAT

VAT payable is incleded as an expense only to the extent that it Is not recoverable from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

1.21 Group Accounts

The Authority has interests in subsidiary companies and therefore group accounts have
been prepared. In the Authority's single entity accounts, the interests are recorded as
financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses,

1.22 Council Tax Income

The Code requires that the Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the accrued income for the year. The differance between the

income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount
required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund
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Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes a Collection Fund Adjustment Account to reflect the Collection
Fund relationship between the Autherity and Billing Authorities, The offsat to thiz account is
included in debtors/creditors. Debtor and creditor accounts are also included in the Balance
Sheat to reflect the amounts due from Council Tax payers.

2 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT YET
BEEN ADOPTED

The Authority is required to disclose the impact of an accounting change that will be
required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted in the CIFFA
Accountancy Code of Practice for the relevant financial year.

The standards that may be relevant for additional disclosures in respect of accounting
changes that are introduced in the 2022/23 Code are:

+ |FRS516 (Leases) only where an authority decides to adopt early in 2022723

+ Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS1 (First Time Adoption),
|AS3T (Onerous Contracis) and IFRS16 (Leases)

It is not anticipated that any of these amendments will have a material impact upon the
information provided in the financial statements, but it will be dependent upon
arrangements in place at that time and further details of the potential impact will be
disclosed when more information bacomes available.

3 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1 the Authority has had to make certain
judgements about unceriainty of future events.

There is a high degree of uncerainty about fulure levels of funding for fire authorities.
However, it has been determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the assets of the Autharity might be impaired as a result of the need to reduce
levels of service provision.

4 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Statenent of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, as
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual resulls could be materially different
from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Authority's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant
risk of material adjustment in the foerthcoming financial year are as follows:
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4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
Uncertainty

Assels are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level
of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current
economic climate makes it uncertain that the Authority will be able to sustain its current
spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing inte doubt the useful lives assigned to
assets.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the
asset falis.

It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings would increase by
approximately £0.025m for every year that useful lives had to be reduced.

4.2  Pension Liability
Uncertainty

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returms on pension fund assets.
Actuaries are engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to
be applied.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

The effects of changes in individual assumptions on the total pension liability can be
measurad.

Examples of how changes in assumptions would impact upon the Firefighters' pension
liabdlity are shown in the table below:

Change In assumption * ln:rm-‘i; Liability | Increase £I': Liability
Rate of return: '
in excess of eamings — reduction of 0.5% per annum | 1.5 5]
| in excess of pensions — reduction of 0.5% per annum 7.5 32 ;
Pensioner mortality
pensioners living (on average) 1 year longer 3.5 15

* Opposite changas in assumptions would produce equal and opposite changes in the
liability.

B EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS
51 Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded
from resources (government grants, council tax and business rales) by local authorities in
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comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by authorities in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. Income and expenditure accounted for under
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehenzive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

[ |

2020/21 202021 Fioklolr ] Finky [ HFrx2 2021122
Hat Adjustmants et it Adjustrnents Het
Expenditure | Betwesn the Expenditure Expenditure | Batwean tho Expeanditure
Chargeable | Funding and in th Chargeable | Funding and in the
ta kha Accounting | Comprehensive ta the Accounting | Comprehensive
Ganeral Basis income and Ganaral Basls Income and
Fumned i1 Expanditiens Fund £o0Q Expanditure
E£000 Stabamant E000 Statement
£000 ED00
a5 DR 4 T35 28,801 | Employees 25,742 5,485 31,257
2,680 2850 | Premises 2,507 = 2807
510 - 810 | Transport 564 - GBS
4 585 - 4,565 | Supplies & Senices 4019 - 4014
<14 . -3 | Prowishans 53 - =3
g 3,183 3,521 | Capial Firansng 2630 -1,039 1,581
1904 . 48604 | Income 4,474 - 4 474
28,210 7,528 36,138 | Met Cost of Services 31,582 4426 38,018
- & «f | Oher Operating incomes & - -
Expenditure
BEL BoT2 5841 | Financing and investmant &35 8672 9,557
Incame & expandiune
-30.B42 149 20851 | Taxation & Non Spacifc -30. 542 253 -31,138
Granis Income
1,763 18,4987 18,424 | Surpliss |-} oF Deficit aa 1,845 13,505 14 480
Provision of Services
-4, 458 Opaning Ganeral Fund 1,450
Balance
: Surplus on Ganeral Fund =51
| Balanca in the pear
1,763 Transters to [ from {-) -1,045
agImarked resarves
1,459 Closing General Fund -1,510
Balanca

5.2 MNote to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to the Net Expenditure
chargeable to the General Fund to amive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

» Adjustments for Capital Purposes

This column adjusts for depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains / losses in the

Net Cost of Services line, along with the statutory charges for capital financing
{minimum revenue provision and revenue contributions) as these are not chargeable
under generally accepted accounting practices.

Capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assels and the amounts
written off for those assets are adjusted within other operating expenditure.

The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with
capital grants receivable in the year without condttions, or for which conditions were
satizfied in the year.
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» Met Change for the Pensions Adjustments

This column includes the net change for the removal of pension contributions and the
addition of |1A519 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income.

Within Net Cost of Services, this represents the removal of the employer pension
contributions made by the Authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with
current service costs and past service costs.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure, the net interest in the
defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

¢ Other Differences

Other differances between amounts debited / credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable / receivable to be recognised under
statute are included in this column.

The Net Cost of Services line includes adjustments in respect of the accrual for
compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, such as annual leave
antittement carried forward at the year end,

The charge under Taxation and Mon Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for
council tax and non-domestic rates that was anticipated to be received at the start of
the year, and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices
in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in
future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

g i Adjustments g
o of
"“"E m"‘:m,m&m f'-'“""n s m’:' Fﬂ o Brrive St | forCapital | Pensions Other Total
Eaps Purposes | Adjustments | Differences Adjustiments
Statemenl amounts  gvon 2000 £000 £000
Employaas - 5462 3 585
Premises . - - -
Transpor - d . .
Supplies & Sanwvices = - = -
Prosisiang B & .
Capital Financing =1,039 - -1,0348
Income - - - -
Mot Cost of Services 1,038 B452 3 4426
Cither Operating Income & Expandiburg i = .
Financing and Investmant Inoaims & Expendiue 5 BETZ 2 B6T2
Taxation & Hon SpecHfic Granks Income =1 3 =483 | =593
Differance between General Fund Surplus or 1,140 14,134 ARD 12,505
Deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expandilune Statemen Surplus or Deficit on the
| Provision of Services
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The comparatives for 2020/21 are shown in the table below:

FLiFiclrg)

Adjustments from General Fund 1o amive at the
Comprehansive Income and Expenditins
Flatement amounis

Adjustments
for Capital
Purposes

£000

Met Change
for the
Pansions

Adjustrnents
£000

Total
Adjustmarnts

Emplayees.

Fremises

Transpon

Supplies & Senices
Provisions

Capital Financing
Income

Mat Cost of Services

Cithar Oiperating Incoms & Expanditure
Financing and |nvestmant Income & Expanditung
Taxation & Mon Specific Grants Income

Difforence betweon Gensral Fund Surplus or
Deficlt and Comprehensive Income and
Expandituie Siatsmant Surplus or Doficit on the
| Provision of Services

3183

4 TET

4,736

4,183

3183

i7E

8,072

1,181

T.828

118

3,188

13,7649

1,200
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6 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

6.1 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year, in accordance with proper accounting
practice, to the resources that are specified by statutery provisions as being available to the
Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Ganaral Capétal Capital
Fund Receipts Grants
2024/22 Balance Rosonna Unapglied Maovermant in
[Usabla [Usabla {Usable Unusabis
Reserves) | Ressrves) Reserves) Rasprves
E000 EDOD £000 £000 N
Charges for depreciabion, impairmend, and downward 1,527 1,527
revaluations of non-curren! assets
Amatisation of Intangible Assels 4 B
Capital Grants and Contribufions 101 101
Amounts of non-cument assets writlen off on disposal or sale -20 20
as par of the gainfloss on disposal o the Comprehensive
Income and Expenciture Statement
Lise of Capital Recaipts Reserve to finance new capital i 20
Transfer of cash proceeds credided as part of the gain on 20 -2
disposal 1o the Comprehensive Income and Expendiune
Statemant
Statutory provision for the iinancing of Capital Investment a6 -39
Capital expendidure charged against the General Fund 2,239 2239
Reversal of ilems relating fo relirement benefits debited or 18,308 19,364
crgdited 10 the Comprehensive Income and Expendsiure
Statemant
Employers pensions coniributions and direct paymenis io 5234 5,234
pensioners payable in the year
Adjustments by which Council Tax income credited to the 452 442
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement i
different from Council Tax income calcutated for the vear in
accordance willh statubosy réquiraments
Amount by which officer remungration charged 1o (he -3 3
Comprehensive Incomea and Expenditure Siatement on an
accruals basis is ditferent from remuneration changeable in the
yaar in accordance with statutony requirements
Total Adjustments 12,508 12,505 |
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Comparatives for 2020/21 are as follows:

2020121

Ganeral
Fund

{Usabile
Ragaraag)

Capital
Grants
Unapplisd
{Usable

Movemant (n
Uniisable
Reseres

Charges for depreciation, Impairment, and downward
revaluabons of non-current assets

Amoartisation of Intangible Assals
Capltal Grants and Contributions

Amounis of non-current assels written off on disposal of salbe
gs part of the gainloss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Incorme and Expenditure Staterment

Urse of Capital Receipts Reserve 1o finance new capital

Transfer of cash proceeds credited as part of the gain on

disposal o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Satemant

Slatulory provision Tor the financing of Capital Invesirgn
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

Reversal of Bems relating to refirement benefits debited or
credited fo the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Employer's pensions confributions and direct payments io
pensionars payable in the year

Adjustments by which Councl Tax ncome credited 1o the
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement is
different from Councdl Tax incorme calculated for the year in
accordance wilh statutory reguiremants

Amount by which officer remuneration charged o the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
aceiuals basis la differant from remunaration changeatibe in the
yaar in accordance with statutory requinements

Total Adjustments

34N

51

-3

]

18,858

5,059

=1,181

@

3471

a1

21

=275

16.858

5,058

1,191

-18,187

18, 18T

7 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

7.4 MNon Distributed Costs

Pension costs relating to past service are treated as non distributed costs.

There are no exceptional items in 2021/22.

7.2 Gain/ Loss on the Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

In accordance with the Code, any gain or loss on disposal of an asset is to be included in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The gain or loss is shown as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement. The loss shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for 2021/22 amounts to £118 (2020121:

gain £4,706)
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7.3 Members' Allowances

Members’ allowances are paid under a scheme introduced by the Fire and Rescue Authority

in December 2003. Expenses for conference and other non-routine meetings are also paid
by the Fire and Rescue Authority.

The total amounts for allowances and expenses paid in relation to Members are as follows:

2020521 2021522
Lo, E000 E000
Allowances 54 50
| Expenses 1 1
Total 55 51

7.4 Employee Remuneration

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2012, disclosure is
required for employees whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions, during the
period exceeded E50,000.

Individual remuneration details are required for senior employees: and in accordance with
the Regulations, senior employees are included by job title.

Total Total
Salary Bonefits in
(including | Expenss | Kind fe.g. mﬂ“’“ Pongion | Remunerstion
203522 febs & Allowancos Car slon contributions M'I'Ilﬂ-nn
i o A contributions t contributions
£ E 5
Chie Fire Officer - 5, Emington 180,741 120 z 150,861 43,126 193 987
Deputy Chief Fire Offices 120,783 120 - 120,013 34 500 155413
Assistant Chisf Fire Officar 113,206 120 2 113,426 32,344 145 770
Temparary Assistant Chiaf Fira Cfficer - - & . a B
@mmmm Treasuresr E5 140 - 65 140 11,660 TE B0
= H‘i.“ﬂ m - -m .m ] 121 .E:Iﬂ l niqm
During the year, the Deputy Chief Executive/Treasurer reduced their contracted hours,
Comparative figures for 2020/21 are as follows:
Tatal Tolal
Salary Banalits in
{incduding | Expense Kind (0.g. “‘:‘“w Pansiin “Tn:"’;;‘l‘““
2020021 fows & Allowances Car s o7 contributions p-mm?
'h“:'““;l E ﬁllﬁﬂ:l‘lﬂll]- coniribubions E canmiributions
o E 3
Chief Fire Officer — 5. Effingtan 147,706 120 147 826 42 539 180,365
Deputy Chisd Fire Officer &7 590 12.024 111,014 28,20 138,235
Asssstant Chied Fire Offices 110,778 120 110,899 31,805 142 804
Temporary Assistant Chisf Fire Officer 20,590 20 21,010 3473 24 483
Deputy Chisf Executivel Treasurer 105,381 i A 105,361 18,883 124 244
452,846 13,284 « 486,130 125,001 621,11

Following the restructure of the senior leadership team, the appointment of the Deputy Chief
Fire Officer in 2020, and the ill-health retirement of an Assistant Chief Fire Officer in the
previous financial year, the temporary promotion of an Area Manager to Temporary
Assistant Chief Fire Officer ceased. The lable above includes the additional costs of this
temporary promotion until it ended.
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The expense allowance for the Deputy Chief Fire Officer includes expenses in relation to

ralacation costs.

Other employees, whose remuneration is in excess of £50,000, are included within the

bandings of £5,000.
Remuneration Band MNumber of Number of
Employees Employees
2020021 2021122
£50,000-£54,999 11 (3
£55,000-£59,998 ) 8
£60,000-£64,989 3 1
£65,000-£69,999 3 T
£70.000-£74 999 1 1
£75,000-£79,999 1 -
£80,000 -£84 909 1 3
Note: No redundancy payments are included in the 2020121 or 2021/22 salary bands shown
abave.
7.5 Exit Packages

The numbers and total cost of exit packages agreed in 2020/21 and 2021/22 are set out in

tha tables below:

2021522 Mumber of Number of other | Total number of | Total cost of exit
Exit Package compulsony departures exit packages packages agresd
cost band redundancies agreed agreed £000
E0-£20,000 = 4 4 37
£20,001-E40,000 - - - B
£40,001-£60,000 - - .
£80,001-EB0,000 & =
£80,001-£100, 000 - -
£100,001-£150.000 . - - -
Total - 4 'y 37
2020421 Number of Humber of other Total number of Total cost of exit
Exit Package compulsory departures exit packages packages agreed
cost band redundancies agreed agresd £000
£0-£20,000 - 1 1 15
200,001 -£40,000 2 2 48
£40,001-£60.000 - - -
Eﬁﬂ.mt'm.m = E
£60,001-£100.000 =
E£100,001-£150,000 = = - -
Tatal = 3 K| 63

The exit packages disclosed in the table above for 2021/22 relate to compensation payments

during the year.

The exit packages disclosed in the table above for 2020/21 relate to payments in respect of
veluntary redundancy made during the year.
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7.6 Termination Benefits

The ‘Employee’ Line of the comprehensive income and expenditure statement for 2021/22
includes £36,862 in respect of compensation payments (£63,425 in 202021 in respect of
voluntary redundancy.)

7.7 External Audit Fees

The accounts of the Authority are audited by Mazars LLP. In accordance with the Code,
authorities are required to disclose payment of fees. The fees payable to Mazars LLP for
2020021 and 2021722 are set out below;

2020121 2021422 |
£000 £000

Fees payable to audilors with regard 1o external audit services 28 A0
carmiad ot by the appointed auditar
Addilional fees payable 1o auditors for work required foe the audit 2 2
of Group Accounts
Fees payabls to audilors in respect of other services providad by . -
Ih appoinied asditor

N 30 42

Fees payable to auditors with regard to external audit services include the increased fee
amount in relation to 2020/21 which was not known until after the accounts had been
finalised.

7.8 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The Local Authorities Capital Finance and Accounting (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2011 requires the Authority to provide for an amount of MRP which it considers to be
prudent. MRF has been prepared on the basis of 4% of the capital finance requirement at
the end of the preceding year, relating to assets held prior to 2008 and 2% of the capital
financing requirement at the end of the preceding year for all other assets.

The MRP relating to the Private Finance Initiative scheme has been calculated as a sum
equivalent te the principal repayment of the outstanding liability.

The amount of MRP charged to the accounts is disclosed in Note 8.5,

7.9 Operating Leases

During 2012113, the Authority took over the lease of the former Reglanal Contral Centre in
Belmont, Durham, to use as its Headguarters. The Authority entered into this lease for 15
years.

During 2013/14, the Authority entered into a lease for its new Technical Services Centre at
Bowburn, Durham. The Authority has entered into this lease for 15 years.
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The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022
Property Property
£000 g000 |
Within one year 458 507
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,082 2,100
Later than & years 6o 169
Total 3,234 | 2,776

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during
the year in relation to these property leases was £458,216 (2020/21: £458 216).

7.10 Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions

The analysis of income and expendilure on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement reflects the internal financial management reporting, as required by
the Code.

The Code recommends that, where appropriate, "segmental” reporting information is
detailed. Reporting segments are those used by resource decision makers when
determining budgets and financial control. With regard to County Durham and Darlington
Fire and Rescue Authority, as the costs relate to one major type of service expenditure,
segmental reporting is not identified.

T.11 Grant Income

The Authority credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement in 2021/22;

2020021 2021722
E000 £000
Privale Finance Initiative 1,130 1,130
Central Governmant 2711 2.2m
Credited to Services 3.E41 3,361
Revenue Support Grant 3,480 3,499
Mational Mon-Domestic Rates 6,556 7610
Small Business Rates Relef Grant 4493 538
Tax Income Guarantee Scheme Grant 126 438
Coovid Granf 1,048 58
Capital Grants - -
Capital Contributions - 101
Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 11,704 12,293
Total Grant Income | 15,545 15,654

7.12 Related Parties

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties i.e. bodies or
individuals that have the potential to contral or influence or be controlled! influenced by the
Authority, Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the axtent to which the
Autharity may have been consirained in its ability to operate independently or might have
secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Authority.
Transactions should be disclosed where material to either the organisation or individual with
whom the transaction has been incurred.
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Central Government

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority, It is
respongible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates,
provides funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions
that the Authority has with other parties. Grants received from Government Departments are
included within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement An analysis of
Government grants is shown above in Note 7.11.

Members

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority's financial and operating
policies. Details of transactions relating to members' interests are recorded in the Register
of Members' Interest which is accessible on the Authority's website. Following a review of
the register and the Related Party Transactions Declarations, it was established that there
were no matenal related party transactions involving members, bar those relating to the
Community Interest Company and Vital Fire Solutions Limited, which is disclosed further
below.

Tha total of members' allowances paid in 2021/22 is shown in Note 7.3.

A number of Members of the Authority are also Members of Durham County Council and
Darlington Borough Council. It is not considered that there have been any material
transactions that could have been affected by this relationship.

Officers

Helen Lynch is Clerk to the Authorily and also Head of Legal and Democratic Services for
Durham County Council.

There were no related party transactions involving senior employees except those relating
to the Community Interest Company and Vital Fire Solutions Limited which are disclosed
further below.

Other Public Bodies

Durham County Council administers the Durham County Council Pension Fund of which the
Authority is a member.

Formal agreements are in place between the Authority and Durham County Council for the
provision of legal services, financial services and technical services. The agreaments are
signed by both parties and regularly reviewed by the Authority’s Director of Corporate
Resources and Treasurer. The value of these agreements is £0.170m (2020/21: £0.197m).

Tha Authority obtains part of its income from precepts levied on the collection authorities in

its area. During the year, transactions with relaled parties, excluding those disclosed
elsewhere in the accounts, were as follows:
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Precepts Precepts
2020121 2021122
|Receipts) [Receipts)
L £000 £000
Durham County Council 15,010 15,091
Darlington Borough Council 3,488 3,555
18,498 18,646
Adjustment for share of Collection Fund -551 186 |
17,947 18,842 |

At 31 March 2022, the Authority owes Durham County Council £0.397m (2020/21: £0.453m)
relating to amounts due from Council Tax Payers and £0.490m in respect of the Collection
Fund (2020/21:£0.876m). Durham County Council owes the Authority £0.187m (2020/21:
£0.189m) in respect of amounts due from Mon-Domestic Rates Payers. The Authonty also
owas Durham County Council £0.405m in relation to the deferral of Business Rates deficits.

In addition, £0.342m (2020/21: £0.575) is due to the Authority from Durham County Council
relating to VAT claimed on the Autherity’s behalf.

At 31 March 2022, tha Authority owes Darlington Borough Council £0.362m (2020/21:
£0.312m) in respect of amounts due from Council Tax Payers and E£0.173m
(2020/21:£0.279m) in respect of the Collection Fund. Darlington Borough Council owes the

Authority £0.045m (2020/21; £0.011m) in respect of amounts due from Non Domestic Rates
Payers.

County Durham and Darlington Community Interest Company

In 2013714, County Durham and Darlington Community Interest Company was incorporated
and commenced trading during 2014/15. The Community Interest Company is a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Authority. The Directors of the company are also senior managers
and members of the Authonty.

As at 31 March 2022, £nil (2020/21: £825) was due to the Fire Authority from the company
in respect of management and administration recharges.

A summary of the company's accounts are shown in Naote 7.13.

Vital Fire Solutions Limited

In 2015/16, Vital Fire Sclutions Limited was incorporated, and the Authority purchased
£15,000 of share capital. The company is a 100% owned subsidiary of the Authority. The
Directors of the company are also senior managers and members of the Authonty.

As at 31 March 2022, £123,113 (2020/21; £132,883) was due 1o the Fire Authority from the
company in respect of management and administration recharges. The Authority owes the
company £132 (2020/21: £7,452) in respect of work carried out on its behalf,

A summary of the company's accounts are shown in Note 7.14.
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7.13 Community Interest Company

The Fire Authority has set up a Community Interest Company for trading purposes. The
company is registered as County Durham and Darington Fire and Rescue Community
Interest Company. The company is wholly owned by the Fire Authority.

The accounts of the company are summarised below.

Group Accounts have been produced for 2021/22 and are presented on pages 17 to 22 of
this Statement of Accounts.

2020029 2021/22
£000 £000

Turnovear
Costof Sales
Gross Profit & -

Administrative Expenses
ProfitiLoss) for the year before taxation

Tax on profit
Profit/{Loss) for the financial year

L]
i

B3| £ab

o
-

7.14 Vital Fire Solutions Limited

The Fire Autherity has created Vital Fire Solutions Limited for trading purposes. This is
registered as a Limited Company and wholly owned by the Fire Authority, who purchased
£15,000 of share capital.

The accounts of the company are summarnsed below,

Group Accounts have been produced for 2021/22 and are presented on pages 17 to 22 of
this Statement of Accounts,

2020/21 2021/22
e _E000 £000
Turmover 280 423
Cost of Sales -155 263
Gross Profit 125 160
Adminisirative Expenses -TB 160
Cither Income 2 1
Profit/{Loss) for the year before taxation 51 1
Tax on profit - =
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year 51 1
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8 BALANCE SHEET
8.1 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are assets that confinue to provide an economic benefit to the Authority
but which do not have physical form.

The following shows the movement on intangible assets during the year.

E£000
Original Cost 543
Amortisations to 31 March 2021 -415
Balance at 1 April 2021 134
Expenditura in year -
Disposals -BE
Amortisation during year -4
Amartisation on disposals &6
Balance at 31 March 2022 Ta

Comparatives for 2020/21 are as follows:

| E00O
Original Cost TS
Amortisations to 31 March 2020 =403
Balance at 1 April 2020 172
Expenditure in year 15
Disposals 41
Amortisation duning year =51
Amaortisation on disposals ag
Balance at 31 March 2021 134
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8.2 Operational Assets

All valuations of buildings are undertaken by or under the supervision of a fully qualified
Chartered Surveyor, who is an employee of a related party, Durham County Council, Full
fixed asset revaluations are undertaken once every five years, unless the changes in the
BCIS index during the year would have a material impact on the asset portfolio. The most
recent valuation of Land and Buildings is effective from 1 April 2021. These values have
been used to determine the 31 March 2022 valuations. The last full valuation as part of the
agreed 5 year rolling programme was previously undertaken in 2018/19, but due to
significant changes in the BCIS index in this financial year, a full valuation has been
undertaken for 2021/22.

Vehicles,
Plant & Land & Surplus
Equipment | Buildings Assots Total
EQQQ £000 E000 EQDQ

Cost or Valuation

AR 1 April 321 16,615 36,058 24 526597

Additans a1 A58 . 1,229

Derecognition - Disposals | Demalitons -382 - - -362

Reclassifications 272 T8 - 1,010

Assats reclassified as held for sale - - . -

Accumulated depreciation and - -1,549 - -1,548

irnpairmeent written off to GCA

Fevaluation increaszes recognised in the - 2,085 - 2,086

Surplus on the Provision of Senvices

Revalualion decreases recognised in the = -1 444 : 1,444

Surplus on the Pravision of Sendces

Revaluation increases recognised in the - 4812 : &4 612

Revaluation Resemne

Revaluation decreases recognised in the . 322 - 322

Revaleation Resere _

Ak 31 March 2022 17,388 40,547 24 57,557
Depreciation and Impairments

At 1 April 2021 -10,025 =2, 710 =1 -12,736

Charge for 2021722 1,077 802 - -1,979

Denacognition - Disposals / Demolitions 342 = . 242

Depreciation written off 1o GCA - 1,124 - 1,124

Impairment writlon off to GCA - 425 . 425

Impairment losses recognised in the - ) - -180

Surplus en the Pravision of Services

Impairment losses recognised in the - AT - AT7

Revalsation Resere

At 31 March 2022 10,760 -2,430 «1 -13,151
Balance Sheet amount at 31 March 2022 6,626 3B AT 23 44, TEE
Balance Sheet amount at 01 April 2021 6,590 33,348 23 39,961
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Comparatives for 2020/21 are as follows:

Vehicles,
Plant & Land & Surplus
Equipment | Buildings Agzets Total
£000 E000 E00D E000

Cost or Valuation

AL 1 April 200 16,001 36,972 24 22,997

Additions 745 432 - 1,177

Deracognition - Disposals / Demalifions -1,266 -5, 830 - -6, THE

Reclassifications 1,135 3,523 - & 058

Assets reclassified as held for sale - = - -

Accumulated depreciation and - ~4f - -48

irmpasrmant witben off 1o GCA

Revaluation mcreases recagnised in the = 138 - 138

Surplus on the Provision of Senvicas

Revaluation decreases récognised in the - -308 . -308

Surpbus on the Provision of Sarvices

Revaluation increases recognised in the = 487 - 467

Revaluation Resarmes

Revaluation decreases recognised in the - - - =

Revaluation Réesar

At 31 March 2021 16,615 35,058 24 | B2 68T
Depreciation and Impairmeants

Ar 1 April 2020 -10,135 -2 061 -1 12,197

Charge for 2020721 -1,138 -B59 - 1,847

Derecognition - Disposals [ Demolilions 1,248 5519 - B, 767

Depreciation writlen off to GCA - 35 - 35

Impairment written off o GCA . 12 < 12

Impairmend losses necoghised in the - -1,308 . -1,305

Surplus on the Provision of Services

Impairment losses recognised in the - =4 1051 - - (54

Revaluation Resarse

Ak 31 March 2021 -10,025 -2,710 i | 12,736
Balance Sheot amount at 31 Mareh 2021 6,550 33,348 23 39,961
Balance Sheet amouwnt at 01 April 2020 5 .BEE 34911 23 40, 800
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The carrying value of operational assets is analysed according to the year in which they

were valued as follows:

Vehlcies,
Plant & Land & Surplus
Equipment | Buildings Assots Total
£000 E000 | £000 £000
Carried a1 historical cost 17,386 8656 24 28 088
Valued at fair valuwe as at;
31 March 2018 - T = 71
31 March 20189 = : z -
31 March 2020 .
31 March 2021 - : F
|31 March 2022 - 31,820 -| 31,820
Total Cost or Valuation 17,388 40,547 24 7,957
8.3 Non-Operational Assets
Assels Under | Assets Under
Construction | Construction
2020121 2021522
| E0DO E000
Cost or valuation
At 1 April Qg2 158
Additions 4 234 B52
Disposals - .
Reclassifications -5,068 =1,010
At 31 March 158 -
Depreciation and impairments
At 1 April <
Charge for year - =
Disposals -
Reclassificatons - -
Revalualion increases [ {decreases) recognised in the Revaluation _
Resenma
At 31 March - -
Balance Sheet amount at 31 March 158 -
Balance Sheet amount at 01 April 882 | 158

8.4 Sources of Funds to Meet Capital Expenditure and Other Plans

Resources and borrowing estimated to arise in future years will be used to finance the
Authority's approved capital programme which is subject to a rolling review.

8.5 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
tegether with the resources that have been used o finance it.

The capital financing requirement represents that part of the value of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assels that is to be met from external borrowing and capital cash
ovardrawn,
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The requirement has decreased by £0.670m from £13.248m to £12.579m as follows:

8.6

2020/21 2021722
£000 £000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement B.178 13,249
Capital Investment
Property, Plant & Equipment 1,177 1,228
Mon-Operational Assels 4,234 852
Intangible Assels 15 -
Donated Assets . 1
Sources of Finance
Capital Receipts 26 -20
Government Grants and Contributions - =101
Minimum Revenue Provision 45 -154
Minimum Revenue Provision - PFI -226 -237
Direct Revenue Pravision =54 -2,239
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 13,249 12,579
Explanation of movements in the year
Reduction in underying need to bormaw (supported by 570
Government financial assistant)
Increase in underlying need fo borrow (unsupported by 5,071 -
Government financial assistance)
Increasel/decrease (-} in Capital Financing Requirement 5,071 870

Capital Commitments

Major capital commitments as at 31 March 2022 are shown in the table below:

8.7

2021722

Sedgefiald Fire Station Refurbishment

2020521
£Em
0.727

Information on Assets Held

Details concerning assets held by the Fire and Rescue Authority are shown below:

Asset Type Mumberasat | MNumber as at

31 March 2021 31 March 2022
Fire Stations 15 15
Standby Accommodation Blocks 2 2
Training Centre 1 1
Vehicles 143 143
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8.8 Inventories

2020021 2021122
~ E000 £000
Balance outstanding at 1 April ' 573 668
Purchases 1,166 848
Recognised as an expenses in the year -1,071 -846
Balance outstanding at 31 March (:1:1:] 670
Provision for obsolete stock I - -
| Balance outstanding at 31 March after provision 668 670
8.9 Debtors

These are sums of money due to the Authority but unpaid as at 31 March 2022, The Authority
seeks lo recover sums due to it as soon as possible and actively pursues outstanding
accounts rendered upon debtors.

Debtors have been reviewed for impairment and the provision for doubtful debts reflects any
uncertainty about amounts receivable.

31 March 31 March
2021 2022
S E000 E£000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Debtors
Government Depariments T2 142
Other Local Authorities 1,11 ]
Other Debtors 2,053 1,564
Payments in Advance 1,715 1,775
Impalrment for Doubtful Debts | - -
5,651 4,381
Amounts falling due after one year: - -
5,651 4,381

8.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022
: £000 £000
Cash held by the Authority 10 )
Bank current accounts 207 462
Short term deposits with banks and building societies 1,700 a01
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 197 1.372

During the year information is provided to the Authority regarding short term deposits. In
accordance with the Authority's adopted Treasury Policy Statement, the Authority is

informed of transactions made with UK clearing banks, money markets and major building
societies.

The accrued interest relating to short term deposits included in the figure above amounis to
£1,004 as at 31 March 2022 (Enil as at 31 March 2021)
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B.11 Creditors

These are amounts owed by the Authority for works done, goods received, or services
rendered which have not been paid for as at 31 March 2022.

31 March 31 March
2021 2022
£000 £000
Creditors

Government Departiments 451 GE9
Other Local Authorities 2,325 2,188
Other Creditors 2,463 1,653
Receipts in Advance 373 601
5652 5031
Short-term Borrowing 23 23
5,675 5,054

During 2020/21, the Authority took out a new loan. Accrued Interest relating to short term
borrowing as at 31 March 2022 was £335 (£227 as at 31 March 2021)

B.12 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another.

Under IFRS9, the Authority recognises expected losses for Financial Instruments, rather
than actual losses. Any expected losses for 2020/21 are immaterial, and therefore, the
Authority has elected not to reflect them in the financial statements, in accordance with
CIPFA guidance,
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Financial Instruments Balances

The carrying amount of financial instruments is shown below:

31 March 31 March H Mareh 31 March
2021 0 2022 2022
Lang-term Curféit | Long-tarm Currani
000 E009 E000 E0OD
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
PWLE Borrowing 1877 23 1,954 23
Bank Overdraft - i H o
Trade Creditors - 778 - 206
Other Creditors - 1,718 = 1,813
Private Finance |nitiative G498 237 6,235 2683
Total Borrowing 8,475 2,758 8,189 2,405
Loans and Receivables at amortised cost
Short-term Deposils . 1,700 - 01
Bank Deposits - 217 - 471
Long-term Debtors = . i =
Trade Debtors - 1,260 - TE3
Other Debtors - B07 - 585
Total Loans and Receivables at amortised - 4,084 . 2,720
cost
Loans and Receivables at FVYPL
Long-term Investments 15 = 15 - =
Total Investments 15 4,084 15 2,720

Financial Instruments Gains and Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the 2021/22 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

Financial Liabilities

L i

Financial Assets Loans |

2021122 measurad at Amortised Cost and Receivables
EQQO0 E000
Interest expense Baag
Interest income -3

Net gain(-)Mioss for the year

Comparative figures as at 31 March 2021 are as follows:

Financlal Liabilities

Financial Assets Loans

EN20IEA measured at Amortised Cost and Receivables
_— E000 E£000
Interest expense 873 -
Interest income - -4

| Met gain{-Jioss for the year

869
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Mature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Authority's activities exposa it to a variety of financial nsks:

= Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the
Authority;

» Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to
meet its commitments to make payments;

» Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a
result of changes in such measures as interest rates.

The Authority's overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets, and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The procedures for rigk
management are set out through a legal framework set out in the Local Government Act
2003 and the associated regulations. These require the Authority to comply with the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice
and Investment Guidance issued through the Act. Overall these procedures require the
Authority to manage risk in the following ways.

« by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice,

« by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three
yaars limiting:

= the Authority’s overall borrowing;

- its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;

- its maximum and minimum exposures the maturity structure of its debt;
- its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year,

» by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting oul its criteria
for both investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the
Government Guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or befora the Authority's annual Council
Tax seiting budget. The items are reported within the annual Treasury Management Strategy
that outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Authority’s financial
instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported annually to Members.

The Treasurer is responsible for implementing the policies outlined above. The Authority
maintains written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covenng
specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash
through Treasury Management Practices (TMPs). These TMPs are a requirement of the
Code of Practice and are reviewed regularly.

(a) Credit Risk

Creadit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions as well as credit
exposures to the Authority’s customers. Deposits are not made to banks and
financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements of the investment
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criteria outlined above. The Authority has a policy of not lending more than £4m to
any one institution. Customers are assessed on their financial position, past
experiance and other factors.

(b)  Liguidity Risk

The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system which ensures
cash is available as needed. As the Authority has ready access to borrowings from
the PWLE, there is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its
commitments under financial instruments. The table in note 8.14 analyses the
scheduled repayments of long-term borrowings over time.

(4] Market Risk

The Autherity has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The
Authority’s policy s to aim to keep a maximum of 50% of its borrowing in variable
rate |loans. During periods of falling interest rates, fixed rate loans could be repaid
early to limit exposure to logses. Any further reduction in interest rates would have a
nagligible impact on the interest eamed on the Authority's investments.

8.13 Provisions
Insurance Provision

An insurance provision has been established to meet the identified potential cost to the
Autharity of insurance paolicy excesses for claims of negligence from employees for personal
injury sustained during the course of their employment and from third parties for personal
mjury or damage to their property. This provision is based on the Insurance Company's
estimates of outstanding claims and settliement of the claims is likely to be spread over a
number of years.

Provision for Non-Domestic Rates Appeals

A provision for Non-Domestic Rates appeals has been established to meet the identified
potential costs to the Authority of appeals in relation to the valuations used in the calculation
of Business Rates. The provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure that will
be required to setile successful appeals, and the settiement of these appeals may be spread
over a number of years.

Movement in Provisions

Mon-Domestic
Insurance | Rates Appeals Total
Provision Provision Provisions
£000 E000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2021 86 228 314
Addiional provisions made in 202122 53 a7 20
Amounts used in 2021/22 - 08 -08
Balance at 31 March 2022 139 167 | 306
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Comparatives for 2020021 are as follows:

Non-Domestic
Ingurance | Rates Appeals Total
Provision Provision Provisions
E£000 EQ0Q E00D
Batance at 1 April 2020 120 288 408
Additional provisions made in 2020021 - 124 124
Armounts used in 2020021 «34 =184 218
Balance at 31 March 2021 BB 228 314

8.14 Deferred Liabilities

The camying amount of deferred liabilities is shown below:

| 3 March 2021 31 March 2022
£000 £000
Debt 1,877 1,953
Private Finance Initiative (PFI} 6,498 6,235
Other lease arrangements 479 3
Deferred incoma - training centre 445 422 |
9,399 9,001 |

Deferred liabilities disclosed within other lease arrangements relate to lease incentives for
the Technical Services Centre and Headquarters buildings. These are accounted for as a
deferred liability and released over the life of the lease,

Deferred income relates to the income received from Durham Police towards the Training
Centra. This enables them to use the building for training purposes over a period of 26 years
from 2015/16 and as such the income is treated as deferred and released to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the term of the agreement.

Deferred Liability — Debt

During the year, the Authority took the decision to take aut a new loan with the PWLB. The
balances shown in the table below relates to long-term borrowings from the PWLE, further
analysed as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2022
£000 £000
Long-term Barrowings
Repayable within 1-2 years 24 24
Repayable within 2-5 years 74 75
Repayable within 5-10 years 133 136
Repayable within 10 years 1,746 1,718
1,977 1,953
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8.15 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Scheme

The Authority has two community fire stations, which are financed by a Private Finance
Initiative (PF1) Scheme. The stations at Bishop Auckland and Spennymoor became
operational during 2010/11.

The PFl contract is for the design, construction and finance of the stations and their
maintenance for 25 years after commencement of cperations. At the end of this period the
contractor is required to transfer the buildings to the Authority in a good state of repair and
al nil cost.

In return for providing the buildings the contractor receives monthly payments from the
Authority and the Government provides a specific grant over the life of the scheme,

The Authority's Balance Sheet includes both assets and liabilities arising from the contract.

The value of PFl assets at 31 March 2022

The Fire Stations were initially valued on the basis of the capital expenditure provided for by
the contractor in pricing the contract. Subsequently the stations were revalued on the basis
of depreciated replacement cost as an estimate of fair value, and these values are included
in the Authority's Balance Sheet. The new valuations are being depreciated on a straight
line basis over 50 years.

Mowvements in the values in 2021/22 are summarised below:

Bishop
Auckland Spennymoor Total
£000 E000 E£000
Initial value of assets financed by contractor 4,638 4133 B771
Accumulated Revaluations -S08 ~240 =1,148
Revaluations in 2021/22 734 1,025 1,758
Gross Book Value after impairment 4 464 4,918 8,382
Accumulated Depreciation -359 =366 =725
2021/22 Depreciation 03 -a7 =180
Accumulated Depreciation written off 107 117 224
Net Book Value at 31 March 2022 4,119 4,572 8,691
Comparatives for 2020721 are as follows:
Bishop
Auckland Spennymoor Total
£000 E000 EDOD
Initial value of assets financed by contractor 4 638 4133 B771
Accumulated Revaluations -508 =240 =1,148
Revaluations in 2020/21 - - =
Gross Book Value after impairment 3,730 3,893 7,623
Accumulated Depraciation -266 - 260 =535
202021 Depreciation 03 -7 -180
Accumulated Depreciation written off = - -
Net Book Value at 31 March 2021 3,371 3,527 6,898 |
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The value of liabilities at 31 March 2022

The assets included in the Balance Sheet are offset by a liability equal to the initial value of
the assets (the capital expenditure provided for by the contractor in pricing the contract).
This liability is written down over the life of the coniract by charging part of the annual
payments to the contractor against the hability.

Movements in the values in 2021/22 are summarised below:

2020121 2021/22
£000 £000

Liability outstanding at 1 April 6.961 6,735

Less: Value of kability written down -226 237

Liability outstanding at 31 March 6,735 | 6,498

Estimates of future payments due:
Repayment — Service Lifecycle
Period Liability £000 Charges | Replacement

£000 £000 E000
2022723 263 688 304 as
2023724 o 2026727 1,303 2,485 1.217 435
2027/28 to 2030/32 2514 2,158 1.521 60T
| 2032433 to 2035/36 2418 564 G937 333
Total 6498 | 5,905 3,979 1,470

The estimates do not include any allowance for inflation
8.16 International Accounting Standard 19 {IAS519) Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employeas, the
Authority offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until
employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to make the payments, that needs to be
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitiement.

The Autherity participates in the following pension schemes:

+ the Local Government Pension Scheme for corporate employees and fire control
staff, administered by Durham County Council - this is a funded defined benefit
scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund,
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment
assals,

» the Firefighter's Pension Scheme for fire officers - this is an unfunded defined benefit
scheme administered by County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority,
meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pansions liabilities,
and cash has to be generated to meet actual pansions payments as they eventually
fall due. Under the Firefighter's Pension Scheme Order 2008, if the amounts
raceivable by the pensions fund for the year are less than amounts payable, the Fire
Authority must annually transfer an amount to meet the deficit to the pension fund.
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This cost is then met by Central Government. If, however, the pension fund is in
surplus for the year, the surplus is required o be transferred from the pension fund
to the Fire Authority which then must repay the amount to Central Government.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The Authority recognises the costs of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services section
of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year,
s0 the real cost of reirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Claims have been mada in relation in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising from
the Transitional Provisions in the Firefighters Pension Regulations 2015 and in December
2018 the Court of Appeal (McCloud / Sargeant) ruled that the ‘transitional protection’ offered
to some members as parl of the reform to public sector pensions amounts to unlawful
discrimination. The Government were unsuccessful in seeking permission to appeal this
decision. On 16 July 2020, the Government published a consultation on the proposed
remedy to be applied to Firefighters' Pensien Schemes and LGPS benefits in response to
the McCloud and Sargeant cases. The consultation closed on 8 October 2020 and HMT
published their response o their consultation on 4 February 2021, confirming their approach
to remedying age discrimination, in line with their proposals. The liability caleulations have
been updated to be in line with the agreed final remedy,

Firefighters' Pension Schemes

The final remedy will apply to those members that were in active service on or prior to 31
March 2012 and on or after 1 April 2015. At retirement, these members will be given a
choice in which schemae they wish to accrue benefits over the remedy period, 1 April 2015
to 31 March 2022, To make that choice all members will be automatically defaulted to the
legacy scheme during the remedy period and the reformed scheme benefits kept as an
underpin. From 1 April 2022, everyone is assumed to accrua benefits in the CARE scheme.
Given the uncertainty in how members’ benefits will accrue over the remedy period, due to
future salary increases, preferences for earlyflate retirement over more pension,
assumptions have been made in order to determine which scheme the member will choosa
to accrue benefits in at retirement. A calculation of the estimated present value of the
benefits that would accrue over the remedy period under each member's legacy and the
CARE scheme has been performed, and it has been assumed that that the member would
choose the scheme that had the highest present value.

The impact of any increase in scheme liabilities will be measured through the pension
valuation process, which determines employer and employee contribution rates.
Implementation of the results from the 2020Firefighter Pension valuation is planned for
2023/24 and authorities will need to plan for the impact of this on employer contribution rates
alongside other changes identified through the valuation process.

The impact of an increase in annual pension payments arising from McCloud / Sargeant is
determined through The Firefighters Pension Scheme (England) Order 2008. These require
a fire authonty to maintain a pension fund into which employee and employer contributions
are paid and out of which pension payments to relirees are made. If the pansion fund does
not have encugh funds to meet the cost of pensions in year the amount required to meet the
deficit is then paid by the Secretary of State to the fire authority in the form of a central
governmeant lop-up grant.
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LGPS

Figures produced by the actuary last year included a McCloud "underpin’ liability within the
current service cost, together with an allowance within the balance sheet reflecting service
since the scheme reforms (2014 in England). The same approach has been adopted in the
current financial year. It has been assumed that the remedy applies to all members in service
on 1 April 2012, on retirement or prior withdrawal, and with extension to benefits payable to
the dependants of those members. IAS19/FR5102 requires a best estimate value of
liabilities and costs. Consistent with the approach adopted for the McCloud impact estimates
made last year, and on the grounds of practicality and pragmatism the actuary has only
considered the active membership data in the latest valuation (any potential liabilities for
members who have left employment between the date of the scheme reforms and the latest
valuation data are unlikely to be significant). This is in line with that proposed in the
Government’s consultation.

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehansive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year.

| Local Fire
Government |  Fighter's
iz Pansion Pansion
Scheme Scheme Total
£000 E000 ED0Q
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Senices

Currend service cosi 1,708 B, 950 10,658

Past sarvice cosls 38 = 3B
Financing and Investment Incomé and Expenditurne:

Mel interest expanse 362 a.310 B.GT2
Total Post Employment Beneflits charged 1o the Swrpies/ 2,108 17.260 19,368
Dakeit on the Provision of Senvices
Odher Post Employment Benefits:

Remeasurement of the nel defined beneft liability
COHTIPRSInG:

Rafurn on plan assets (excuding the amoun included in -441 . -4

the net interest axpansa)

Actuarial gains [/ losses (-} arising on changes in ~440 - -440

dernographic assumptions

Actyarial gains / losses (-) arsing on changes in financial -3.077 5,070 -8, 147

assumpticns

Other 137 1.227 1.364
Total Ciher Posi Employment Benefs charged 1o the 3,821 -3.B43 -7 664
Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement
Total Post Employment Benefits charged to the -1,713 13,417 11,704
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of nel charges made to the Surplusl Defict for the -2, 108 A7, 260 -18,368
Provigion of Services for posb-employment benefis in
acoordance with IAS1S
Actual amount charged againsi the General Fund Balance TTd 3T 4 Bl
for pensions in the year:

Employers contribulions payable to the scherma 3 540 543

Refirement benefits payable to pensioners
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The comparative figures for 2020/21 are:

Local Fire
Government | Fighter's
2020521 Pension Pension
Scheme Scheme Total
E0ODD £000 E0DD
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services:

Currant service cosi 1,138 B,650 9. TG

Pas! service costs ) _ 2
Financing and Imvestment Income and Expenditure:

Met interest expense : 02 8,770 9,072
Total Post Employment Benefits charged to the Surplus/ 1,438 17,420 18,858
Dwfict on the Provision of Sarvices
Cither Post Employment Benefits:

Remeasurament of the net defined benebt lsbility
comprising:

Retum on plan assets (axcluding the amount incheded in -} GER - -4 G55

the net interest expanse)

Actuarial gains [/ losses (-} arising on changes in . - -

demographic assumplions

Actuarial gains /lossas (-) ansing on changes in inancial B, TRE 29 440 48, 165

assumplions

Oiher =350 -26,242 ~26, 553
Total Other Post Employment Benefits charged o the 3,450 13,154 16,648
Comprehengive Income and Expanditure Statemeant
Total Post Employment Benefits charged to the 4 888 30618 35,508
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statomont
Reversal of ned charges made %o the Surplus/ Deficit for the 1,438 AT 420 -1B,858
Provision of Sendces for post-employmend benefits in
accondance with [AS519
Actusl amount chargad agalnst the General Fund Balance
Tar pensions in the year

Employers condributions payable 1o tha schame () 3,848 4 645

Fetingrment benefits payable o pensloners 3 510 513

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses to 31 March 2022 is £90.47m (2020/21 £88.13m),
made up as follows:

* Local Government Pension Scheme £5.49m (2020/21 £9.32m)

= Firefighter's Pension Scheme £84,98m (2020/21 £88.81m)
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Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities in relation to Post-employment Benefits

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method,
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions
about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Firefighter's Scheme and the County
Council Fund liabilities have been assessed by independent actuaries; estimates for the
County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March
2019,

The pension increase assumption as at 31 March 2022 is based on the Consumer Price
Index (CPl) expectation of inflation. This is a consequence of the Government's
announcement that CP| is to be used for the indexation of public service pensions from April
2011.

Under IAS19, any obligation arising from long-term employee benefits that depend upon
length of service need to be recognised when service is rendered. As injury awards under
the Firefighter's schemes are dependent on service, the liability expected to arise due to
injury awards has been valued in respect of service prior to the valuation date. The hability
arising from injury awards has been restated for previous years.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary for the periods 2020/21 and 2021/22 are

shown in the tables below:

Local Gavernment | Local Governsment Firefighter's
22022 Funded Pension Unfunded Panaion Pension
Schame Scheme Scheme
Martality asswmplions:
Longewity a4 65 for current pensioners.

&  Bben i | 221 1.5

& VamEn 242 242 215
Longevity at B8 for fulure pensionsrs:

s Man 232 23.2 232

»  WWomen 257 5T e ]
Rata af Inflatan

« CFl 3o an a0
Rafe of incréads in Salarss 4.0 nia 475
Rate of increasa bo pansions in payment 30 240 a0
Aate of increase b defered pensions an nia 30
Rate for discownting scheme liabiities 27 7 2.63
Take-up of aption to convert annual pension into retinsmant lump Sur:

*__ Inchuding any soonsed lump surm fram pee 2008 Sanvics i) n'a n'a

Lecad Governmant | Local Gowvernment | Firefighter's
202 Funded Pension Unfunded Pansion Pansion
Scheme Seharma Schame
Mortality assumpdions.
Longevity al 85 for cunnenl pensionars;

[ [LEH] 223 2.3 Fal

« \Women 24.3 43 21.
Lengsvity &l B5 far fulure pansionans:

« han 3.3 na 231

«  Woamen 258 nia 231
Rate of inflaton:

" CP1 a7 27 Z4
Rate of increase in salarfes 37 ne 418
Rate of increase 1o pensions in paymenl 27 27 24
Fade of incressa to defermed pensions 27 mla 24
Rate for dicauniing schems liakdites z4 2.1 20
Take-up of aplion 1o comvert annual pensicn inlo retirernent lump Sumc

= Inchuding gy accrued kump sum fiom pre 2008 serdcs 85 na na
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The Firefighter's Pension Scheme has no assets to cover its liabilities. The Authority
employs a building block approach in determining the rate of return on the Local Government
Pension Scheme’s assets. Historical markets are studied and assets with high volatility are
assumed to generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capital markst
principles,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 19 years for Firefighter
Pension Scheme and 21.8 years for the Local Government Pension Scheme.

(i) Firefighter's Pension Scheme

Past Service Liabilities
The past service liabilities for 2021/22 are;
1982 Injury 2006 2015 Total
Scheme Aowards Scheme Scheme £
Em Em_ £m Em s
Estimaled Fabilities in schemsa

Active members (past senios) 106 55 1.76 1963 4703 | 17797

Defermed pensions 1.1 = 238 0.97 14.45

Pensions in Payment (ingury owands) - 902 - - 402

Pensions in Payment (exciuding 21827 . 0.35 209 | X207

njury)

Retained Settiement - . 3.33 -1 333
Total 33692 10.78 2569 50.08 | 42548
Het pensions deficit 338 52 10.78 25.69 50.0A | 42548

The comparative figures for 2020721 are:
1882 Injury 2006 2015 ot
Scheme Awards Scheme Scheme P
Em Emi Em £m
Estimated liabilites in schema

Active members (pasl sanvica) 114,02 1.68 20,02 3414 | 16988

Defarred pansions 9.39 - 2.25 1.07 121

Pensions in Paymen [injury awards) - 7.50 - - 7.58

Pansgions in Paymend {exciuding 221,55 - 0.33 098 | 23288

injury)

Retained Setllernen - - 3.50 - 3.50
Total 344 .96 9.27 26,10 3618 | 416.52
et pensicns defici 344 96 927 26,10 619 | 416.52

The comparative figures for 2019720 are:
1992 Injury 2006 2015 Yotal
Schema Awards Scheme Seheme £m
Em £m Em Em
Eslimaled liabilites n schema

Active mamiperns (pasl serdice) 124.T5 1.71 18.27 26.81 172,64

Defarred pansions 643 = 1.01 . 7.44

Pansions in Payment {injury awards) - 8,84 . 8.84

Pensions in Payment (excluding 196,04 " 1.08 20010

injury)

Retained Settiemnent - - 0.24 -| 024
Total 330,22 11.58 21.58 28,91 390,26 |
Med pensions dabicil 330.22 11.56 21.58 2691 | 30028
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Analysis of Movement in Gross Scheme Liabilities

1992 Injury 2008 2015
2021122 Scheme | Awards | Scheme | Scheme Total
Em Em Em Em Em
Net deficit at the start of current year 344 .96 9.27 28.10 3819 | 416.52
Movement in the year:
Current service cost (net of employee 0.1 0.21 0.02 8.61 B.as
cantributions)
Cost covered by employee confributions 0.04 . i0.04 1.57 1.65
Past service cost - - = A *
Pension Transfers - - - 0.09 0.0
Interest on pension liabilities B.79 0.18 0.52 .82 B
Total banefits paid -11.3% -0.90 -0.13 -0.30 12,72
Curtailment and settlements : % % _ 5
Actuarial gain (-\loss - demographic - - - - -
assumplions
Actuarial gain (-)loss - financial -3.63 0.1 -0.45 (.88 -5.07
assumptlions
Actuarial gain (-)loss — other 2.04 213 -0.41 309 7.75
Met deficit at the end of year 338.92 10.78 25.69 50.09 425.48
The comparative figures for 2020721 are:
1992 | Injury 2006 2015
2020021 Scheme | Awards | Scheme | Scheme Total
Em Em £m Em £m |
Met deficit at the start of current year 330.22 11.55 21.58 26.91 390.26
Movement in the year:
Current service cost (net of employee 0.31 020 0.05 B.08 865
contributions)
Cost covered by employee contributions 0.08 - 0.04 1.51 163
Past sarvica cosl - - - - -
Pension Transfers . - - 0.05 0.05
Interest on pension liabilties 7.3 0.26 0.49 0.7 By7
Tetal benefits paid -11.52 .77 -0.06 -0.11 -12.46
Curtailment and satilarmants - = = Z i
Actuarnial gain (-ploss — demographic - - - -
assumptions
Actuarial gain (-Moss — financial 29.83 0.54 3.72 5135 359.44
assumptians
Actuarial gain (-)loss — other =11.27 -2.51 0.28 £32| -18.82
Met deficit at the end of year 344.96 .27 26.10 3619 | 416.52
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Analysis of Movement in Scheme Assets

1992 Injury 2006 2015
Scheme | Awards | Scheme | Scheme | Total
Em Em Em Em Em
Opening fair value of asset - - - . -
Movement in the year:
Interest income . - . : z
The return on plan assets, - - - = -
excluding the amount included in
the net interest expense
Other -11.25 - -0.05 4.70 -6.60
Contributions by employer 0,10 -0.90 -0.04 -3.52 w2} 56
Contributions by participants -0.04 p .04 -1.48 -1.56
Met benafits paid cut 11.38 0.90 0.13 0.30 12.72
Closing fair value of assets - s = : %
The comparative figures for 2020/21 are:
1892 Injury 2008 2015
Scheme | Awards | Scheme | Scheme | Total
___Em Em Em Em Em
Dpening fair value of asset = = . . -
Movement in the year:
Interest income E: L - e 4
The return on plan assets, = = = . -
excluding the amount included in
the net interest expense
Other -11.24 - 0.02 4,75 -6.47
Centributions by employer 0.20 0.77 004 340 441
Contributions by parlicipants -0.08 - 0.04 -1.48 -1.58
Met banefits paid out 11.52 0.77 0,08 0.11 12 45
Closing fair value of assets - - - T 5
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Analysis of Movement in Net Obligations

19592 Imjury 2006 2015
Scheme | Awards Scheme | Scheme | Total
£m Em Em Em £m

Met deficit at the start of current year 344,08 827 26.10 36.19 416.52
Movement in the yadar:

Current sanvice cost (net of employes .11 021 0.0z 881 B.B5

conbibutions)

Contribations by employer 0.0 0.0 -0.04 -3.52 -4 66

Contributions by participants = - 0.09 .08

Past service cost - - - -

Pengion transfers . - - 0.09 0.09

Inerest on net defined banafit liability 6.T9 018 0.52 0.82 831

Return on plan assels in excess off = . - - -

below that recognised in net inbesest

Actuarial gain {-)loss - change in =363 -0.11 -0.45 -0.88 507

financial assumplions

Actuarial gain (-Wloss - change in - -

demographic assumptions

Actuarial gain (-} loss - other -8.21 213 =046 B.69 1.18

Met benafits paid = x = 2 g
Mot deficit at the end of year 338.92 10.78 25.69 50.048 42548

The comparative figures for 2020021 are:
1992 Irjury 2006 2015
Scheme | Awards Scheme | Scheme | Total
Em £m Em Em Em

Met deficit at the start of current year 33022 11.55 21.58 26.91 380.26
Movemneant in the yaar:

Current service cost (net of employee 0.3 0.20 0.05 B.0% 885

contributions)

Contributions by employer -0.20 077 0,04 -3.40 -4.41

Contributions by pardicipants - - - 0.05 0,05

Fast service cosi - - - -

Pension transfers - - - 0.05 0.05

Inleras] en net defined benaffit liability T3 0.26 048 0.71 87T

Return on plan assets in excess off -

bealow that recognised in net interest

Actuarial gain {-Moss = change in 2983 0.54 a7 5.35 3044

financial agsumptions

Actuarial gain (-Moss — change in - - -

demagraphic assumplionsg

Actuarial gain (<) loss - olied 2251 =251 0.20 -1.87 -26.249

het banafits paad - - . - -
Met deficit at the end of year 344,96 8.27 2610 3619 416.52
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(i) Durham County Council Pension Fund

Analysis of Movement in Gross Scheme Liabilities

Funded Unfunded Total
2021r2d £m £m £m
Opening Present Yalue of Liakilities 4497 0.0z 4489
Current service cost (nat of employee contributions) 1.7 - 1.7
Irterea] cosl 004 - 004
Conlributions from scheme participants Q.25 - .25
Remaasurament gains (-)f losses:
s Actuanal gaing/ losses arising from changes in -0.44 . <4
demographic assumptiong
*  Actuanal gains/ losses arising from changes in financial -3.08 - -3.08
FISUMPLHONS
»  Oiher 012 - 012
Past serice costs 004 - o4
Bonefils paid -0.95 - -0.95
Closing present value of liabilities 431,58 0.02 43.58

The comparative figures for 2020/21 are:

Funded Unfunded
2020721 Em Em TE:l
Opening Present Value of Liabllities 34.85 0.03 34.08
Current service oost (nel of employes contributions) 1.14 - 1.14
Interesl cosl 0.8 - i i
Coniributians from schama parficipants 024 - 024
Remaasurament gains (-} losses:
e Actuanal gainsd losses arising from changes in - . &
demographic assumpiions
«  Actuanal gains/ losses arising from changes in financial 875 - B.75
assumphons
«  Oiher <), 34 -0.01 -0.35
Pasl sarvice costs - - -
Benefits paid 0,67 - 057
Closlng present wvalue of labilities a4 87 0.02 44,599
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Analysis of Movement in Scheme Assets

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assals:

2021122 FuEnmﬂd um;:m T;I
Dpening fair value 27.38 . 27.35
Inleras! income 0.58 . 0.58
Remaazsuremeant gainfloss:

*  The retun on plan assels (excheding the amount included 0.44 - (a4

in met interast expensa)

= Oiher . =
Contributions from employer 0.7 - 0.76
Contributions by employees ino the schemea 0.25 0.25
Benefits paid =055 -0.95

Closing fair value 28,41 2B.43
The comparative figures for 2020/21 are:
nfunded Total
aay Foadid | Womed | 8
Opening fair value 21.53 21.53
Interest income 0.50 0.50
Ramaasurgmant gainioss:

s The return on plan assels (excuding the amount incheded 4.85 4.95

in net intarast cxpense)

s Other = * =
Contributions from employer Q.70 - 070
Contributions by employess inlo the schema 0.24 - 024
Benefits paid «0.57 - -0.57

Closing fair value T35 - a7.38
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The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £1.02m (2020/21; £5.46m
loss)

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date,

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in
the respective markets.

Fair Value of Scheme Assels

The Local Government Pension Scheme assels are comprised of the following categories:

2021122 Z0211z2 2021122 2020021 2020021 2020021
Cuoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unguoted Total
Eri Em Em Em . Em £m
Equity Imvestmeants 15.12 .60 1572 14,88 .19 15.07
Froparty 0.43 1.51 1.94 0.33 1.39 1.72
Govemment Bonds 4,26 4. 26 4 .35 4 .35
Cofparate Bonds 1.68 1.68 443 4,92
Cash 0.7 o7 1.28 1.29
Orther 4,12 - 412 - - .
Total 26.32 211 28,43 2577 1.58 27.35
Analysis of Movement in Net Obligations
Funded Unfunded Total

2021422 £m £m £m
MNet deficit at the beginning of year 1762 0.02 17.64
Current senvice cost 1.71 - 1.1
Contributions lowards funded liabilites 076 - 078
Past servics cosi 0.04 - 004
Interest on net defined benefit llability 0,38 - 036
Return on plan assets in excess off below that recognised in nat 1,44 - -0
inberes
FActuarnipl gains! losses due to changes in inancial assumptions -4.08 =308
Actuarial gains/ losses due to changes in  demographic {144 - -0.44
assumptions
FActuarnial gains losses due to other changas [ 012 - 0.12
Mat deficit at the end of year 15.1 :!_ | 0.02 1515
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The comparative figures for 2020/21 are:

Fundad Unfunded Total
a020r1 £m £m £m

Het deficit at the beginning of year 13.42 0.03 13.45
Current service cost 1.14 1.14
Conbributions towards funded kablities 0,70 -0.70
Past service cost - "
Interesi on net defined banefit Rabality 0.30 - 0.30
Return on plan assels in excess off below thal recognised in net ~-4.05 - 445
interest

Actuarial gains/ losses due bo changes in financial assumptions 875 = B.75
Actuarial gainsf losses due to changes in  demographic L z
assumplions

Actuarial gainss losses due to ofher changes -0.34 =001 -0.35
Mot deficit at the end of year 17.62 0.02 17.64

Scheme History for the Firefighter Pension Schemes and the Local Government

Penslon Scheme

201718 201819 2019120 2020521 riira i
£m £m Em Em Em

Present value of liabilities:

Local Government Pension Scheme 31.64 23585 34,58 4480 43,58

Firefighter's Pension Schemia 381,73 413.72 39026 418,52 42548

Total Present Value of Liabilities 413,37 44727 425.24 481.51 459,06
Fair valug of assets

Local Governmeni Pension Schame 21,43 23.31 21.53 2735 28,43

Firefightar's Pension Scheme - - . . -

Total Fair Value of Assets 2143 23.31 21.53 27.35 28.43
Surplus/ deflcit (<) in the schame:

Local Gevernment Pension Scheme =121 -10.24 -13.45 -17.684 -15.15

Firefighter's Pension Scheme -381.73 413,72 390,26 -416.52 -425 48
Total Deficit 391,94 =423 86 -403.71 434,18 440,83 ]
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The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the long run to pay
retiremeant benefits. The lotal liability of £440.828m has a substantial impact on the net worth
of the Authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a negative overall balance of
£403.715m. However, statutory arrangaments for funding the deficit mean that the financial
position of the Autharity remains unaffected:

« the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased
contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the
schamae acluary.

= finance is only required to be raised to cover fire pensions when the pensions are
actually paid,

Employer Contributions

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by
the Authority in the year to 31 March 2023 are £0.771m. Expected contributions to the
Firefighter's Pension Scheme in the year to 31 March 2023 are £3.747m.

8.17 Reserves

The Authority holds a number of reserves on the Balance Sheet. Some are required to be
held for statutery reasons, some are needed to comply with proper accounting practices,
and others have been set up voluntarily to earmark resources for future spending plans.
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The movement in reserves is set out in the following table:

Movem Balance 31 Further
Balance 1 SwEment ance 2
Resarve Aprl 2021 | inYear | Marchz0zz | FUtPosecfReserve | cetalls of
E0DD [ 2e]u]s] E000
Usable Reserves
General Fund 1,459 51 1,510 | Resources availabla Mivarmien in
1o mead future running | Resanves
costs Staterment
Earmarked Resanes 5235 =1,986 4.240 | Detailad below Mate 8,19 to
the accounts
Capittal Granis Unapplied - - - | Grants to be used 1o | Mowement in
finance capilal Resermes
expanditure in future | Statemant
yEars
Capilal Receipts Unapplied - . - | Receipts from the Maovament in
sabe of capilal assets | Reserves
to be used 1o finance | Statement
capiial expanditura in
future years
Total Usable Reserves 7,685 -1,945 5,750
Unusable Resarves
Revalsation Resens 5,762 3924 8666 | Gains on revaluation | Mole 8.20 (1) to
of Property, Plant and | the accounts
Equipment not yat
realised through sales
Capital Adjustmant 20,881 1,329 22,210 | Capilal resources set | Mote 8.20 (i)
Account aside o meet capial | to tha accounts
expenditune
Caollection Fund -1,166 482 -664 | Share of Collection Mobe 8.0 (i)
Adjustment Account Fund Balamca io the accounts
oulstanding
Pensions Resenve (LAS19) 434,158 5470 -440,628 | Balancing accountto | Mote 8.20 (W)
allow inclusion of to the accounts
Pensions Linbty in
the Balance Sheat
Shor-lerm Accumutaling e ] -3 468 | Balancing account bo | Mote B.20 (v)
Abzencas allow inclusion of bo the accounts
employeas liability in
_ the Balance Sheet
Total Unusable Reserves 408 737 -T28 =410, 465
Total Reserves -401,042 ] 2,673 =403, 715
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Comparatives for 2020421 are as follows:

Met
Furthar
Balance 1 Moverment Balance 31
Ressrve April 2020 | inYear | March2ozi | PurPoseof Reserve |  details of
E£000 £000 £000 Movement
Usable Reserves
General Fund 1.458 - 1,458 | Resources available Movement in
o meeat fulure running | Resemves
costs Statermant
Earmarked Resarves 4473 1.763 6,235 | Detailed balow Mobe B.19 to
the accouns
Capital Grans Linappliad - - Granis bo be used to | Movement in
finance capital Resendses
expanditung in futura Statermnant
yaars
Capital Receipls Unapplied - - Receipls from the Mowement in
sale of capital assets | Resarvas
o be used to finance | Statement
capital axpendiura in
future years
Total Usable Reserves 59312 1,763 7.655
Unusable Reserves
Revaluation Resanse g 562 -3,E00 5,762 | Gains on revaluaton Mote B.20 (i) to
of Propedy, Plant and | the accounis
Equipmant nof yat
realised through sales
Capital Adjustment 23,853 -2.672 20,881 | Capital resources sat | Mote &.20 (i)
Account aside tomeet capital | to the accounis
expendifuns
Collection Fund a5 =1,181 =1,156 | Share of Collection Pole B 20 (i)
Adjustment Account Fund Balance to the accounts
oulstanding
Pensions Resemnve (A5 18) -403, 711 «30, 44T -434. 158 | Balancing sccount [ | Mole 820 (v)
alloy inclusion of to the accounis
Pensions Liability in
the Balance Sheel
Shor-term Accumulating AT - 66 | Balancing account to | Mote 8.20 (v)
Absences allow inclusion of bo the aocounts
employees Habilily in
{he Balanca Sheat
Total Unusable Reserves =370, 318 -38 418 -408, 737
Total Reserves ~364, 386 -36,656 -401 042
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B.18 Movement in Earmarked Reserves

The following contributions have been made to / from (-) the earmarked reserves:

Increase |

1 April decrease (-) 31 March

2021 in year 2022

£000 £000 £000
Pensions 500 - 500
Community Safety 158 8 166
Insurance 285 - 285
Civil Resilience (Mew Dimansions) 20 19 39
Resilience 1,294 -284 1,000
Modernisation 2837 -1,775 G2
ESMCP T -108 625
New Risks 32 -3 29
Training 85 115 200
Strategic Finance —Funding Pressures 426 40 466
IT Projects GB - 68
Total 8,236 -1,996 4,240

Comparatives for 2020/21 are as follows:
Increase |

1 April decrease (-) 31 March

2020 in year 2021

£000 £000 £000
Pensions 500 - 500
Community Safety 110 48 158
Insurance 250 35 285
Civil Resilience {Mew Dimansions) - 20 20
Resilience 825 669 1,294
Modamisation 2,130 507 2837
ESMCP 812 -81 Ta1
Mew Risks 45 =14 32
Training - 85 85
Strategic Finance ~Funding Prassures . 426 426
IT Projects - GB B
Total 4,473 | 1,763 6,236 |

8.19 Earmarked Reserves
Earmarked reserves at 31 March 2022 were as follows:

Pensions Reserve
To meet any unforeseen pension costs which may arise as a result of changes o
pension schemes.

Modernisation Reserve
To meet any one-off costs associated with service transformation.

Community Safety Reserve
To enable specific community safety improvements to be undertaken.
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B8.20
(i)

Insurance
To meet any unexpected increase in the level of excesses paid on insurance claims.

Civil Resilience (New Dimensions)
The balance of unspent grant, earmarked for Civil Resilience expenditure,

Resilience Reserve
To fund continuity of service provision, following an unforeseen event.

Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme (ESMCP)
The balance of unspent grant, earmarked to fund the replacement mobile
communications systams,

New Risks
The balance of unspent grant, earmarked to fund the response to emerging new risks.

Training
The balance of unspent funding, to fund future training programmes.

Strategic Finance — Funding Pressures
To fund continuity of service provision, in the event of future funding pressures.

IT Projects
To fund future Information Technology Projects.

Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases
in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The balance is
reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;

« used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through
depreciation, or

» disposed of and the gains are realisad,

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that
the Reserve was created, Accumulated gains arising before that dale are consclidated into
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2020021 2021122
£000 E000
Opening Balance at 1 April 9,562 5,762
Revaluation gains/losses -3,584 4,113
Excess of current cost depreciation -6 =189
Balance written off on disposal of asset - T
Closing Bakanes at 31 March 5,762 9,686
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(ii) Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing
the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert
fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set
aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains,
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Opening Balance at 1 April

Reversal of iems relating to capital
expenditure debited or credited fo the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Charges for depreciation, impairmeant
and dowrward revaleations of non-
currant assets

Amortisation of intangible aszsels

Revenue Expenditure funded from
Capital under Statute

Amounts of non-current assets writlen
off on disposal or sale as part of the
gainfioss on  disposal W the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the
Revaluation Reserve

Met written out amount of the cost of non-
current assels consumed in the yvear

Capital financing applied in the year
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance new capital expenditure

Application of grants to capital
financing from the Capital Granis
Unapplied Account

Capital Grants and Contributions
credied to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statemeant

Statutory provision for the financing for
capital investmaent charged against the
General Fund

Capital expenditure charged against
the General Fund

Closing Balance at 31 March

2020121 2021122
E000 £000 EDDD E00D

23,853 20,881

=347 -1,627

-51 A4

=21 =20
-3,543 1,611
216 1849
-3,327 -1,422

26 20

- 101

275 3

54 2,239
355 2,751
20,881 22,210
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(iii) Collection Fund Adjustment

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arsing from the
recognition of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund
from the Collection Fund.

2020021 | 2021122
£000 £000

Opening Balance at 1 April 35 -1,156
Amount by which Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income | -1,181 | 492
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from the council tax and non-domestic
rates income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
Closing Balance at 31 March -1,156 664

{iv) Pensions Reserve (IAS 19)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in
accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earmned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meel the costs.
However, statulory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority
makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pay any pensions for which
it is directly responsible, The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been
set aside by the time benefits come to be paid.

2020/21 2021122
mng_ EO00

Opening Balance at 1 April 403,711 | -434,158
Remaasurements of the net defined beneafit liability/ asset (-) -16,648 7664
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited -18,658 -18,368
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprahensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employers pension  confributions and direct payments 1o 5,059 L2344
pensicners payable in the year
Closing Balance at 31 March -434, 158 | -440,628
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{v) Short-term Accumulating Absences

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arize on
the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences eamed but not taken
in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory
arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by
transfers to or from the Account,

2020521 2021122
E00D £000
Opening Balance at 1 April -57 66
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the year end of a7 GE
the preceding year
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year G5 -69
Closing Balance at 31 March -GG 69 |

8.21 General Reserve
The net accumulated unapplied General Fund Revenue balance is £1.510m as at 31 March
2022 which equates to 5% of the 2022/23 Net Expenditure Budget. This is in line with the

Authority's policy on reserves which is to maintain a General Reserve of 5% of the Net
Expenditure Budget for the short to medium term,

8.22 Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

« Contingent Liability - Subsidiary Companies
The Fire Authority has provided a financial guarantee to its subsidiary companies; County
Durham and Darlinglon Fire and Rescue Community Interest Company and Vital Fire
Solutions Limited. As there is no certainty that this guarantee would need to be utilised or
the value of such a guarantee, it has been included as a contingent liability.

= Contingent Assets

There are no contingent assets for 2021/22.

8.23 Authorisation of Accounts for Issue/Post Balance Sheet Events
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Treasurer, Anthony Hope, on

30" November 2022. This is the date up to which evenis after the Balance Sheet date have
been considered. No such events have been identified for 2021/22.
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9 CASH FLOW STATEMENT
9.1 Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for Non-Cash

Movements
2020021 2021122
€000 £000
3,471 | Depreciation, impairment and downward revaluations 1,527
51 | Amortisation B4
- | Increase/Decrease(-) Interest Creditors -
1,805 | IncreasalDecrease(-) in Creditors 547
-718 | Increase(-)/Decrease in Deblors 1270
- | Increase(-)/Decrease in Impairment of Debtors -
-85 | Increase(-)/Decrease in Inventories -2
=113 | Increase/Decrease(-) in Deferred Liabilties -112
13,798 | Movement in Pension Liability 14,134
-84 | Confributions toffrom (-) Provigions -8
21 | Carrying amount of non-current assets held for sale, sold or 20
deracognised
18,228 16,246
9.2 Operating Activities
The cash flows for operating activities include the following itemns:
2020121 2021/22
E000 E0OD
25,065 | Employes Costs 25,792
=17.847 | Council Tax Receipts -18,842
-3,480 | Revenue Support Grant -3,4549
-5 5568 | Redistributed NNDR -T.610
4 | Interest receivable -3
Interest payable in respact of borrowing 41
T47 | Interest payable in respect of PFI 723
9.3 Investing Activities
[ 2020021 2021122
E000 £000
5,428 | Purchasa of property, plant and equipment, 2,081
investment property and intangible assets
-26 | Proceeds from the sale of property. plant -20
and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets
- | Qther receipts from investing activities -101
5,400 1,960 |
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8.4 Financing Activities

2020521 2021722
£000 £000
2000 | Gash receipts from short and long-term
! borrowing 2
226 | Cash payments for the reductions of 237
outstanding liabilities relating to on-balance
sheet PFI contract
- | Repayment of short and long term borrowing 23
1,774 260

9.5 Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities

Balance at Balance at
1 April Financing 31 March
2021 cash flows 2022
£000 EQOD E£000
Long-term borrowings 2,000 23 1,877
On Balance Sheet PFI Liabilities 6,735 -237 6408
8,735 -260 8,475

9.6

Under IFRS, cash and cash equivalents include the Authority's cash in hand, bank overdrafts
and short-term investments. The movement in cash and cash equivalents was as follows:

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020121 2021122 nan:'::rmur

E000 EQOD - £000
Cash 217 a7 554
Cash Equivalents 1,700 801 =789
1,917 1,372 545
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FIRE PENSION FUND ACCOUNT

The Firefighter's Pension Scheme for fire officers is an unfunded defined benefit
scheme administered by County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Authority,
meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities,
and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually
fall due.

Under the Firefighter's Pension Scheme (Amendment) (England) Order 2008, if the
amounts receivable by the pensicns fund for the year are less than amounts payable,
the Fire Authority must annually transfer an amount to meet the deficit to the pensicn
fund. This cost is then met by Central Government. If, however, the pension fund is in
surplus for the year, the surplus is required to be transferred from the pension fund to
the Fire Autherity which then must repay the amount to Central Government.

There are no investment assets relating to the Fire Pension Fund.

Details of the Authority's long-term pension obligations can be found in Note 8.16 of
the financial statements.

The transactions of the Fire Pension Fund, together with a Net Assets Statement, are
as follows:

Fire Pension Fund Account

Dealings with members, employers and others directly involved in the scheme

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000
Contributions receivable
Fire Authority contributions in relation to pensionabla pay
Normal -3,640 -3,651
Early retiremeant e =
Firefighter's contributions -1,630 -1,663
| Transfers in from other schemes -59 -BB
Il health capital contributions =178 =270
Benefits payable
Pensions 8834 10,092
Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 1,870 1,538
Lump sum death banafits - 213
Refund of contributions - 5
Transfers out to other schemes - -
| Nat amount payable for the year 6,197 6,172
Top-up grant payable by the Government -5 1897 5,172
Year end balance - -
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MNet Assets Statement
| A3 At 31
| March March
2021 2022
EDODD E000 |
Met current assets and liabilities
Amount due to {-) / from the Authority's -648 173
General Fund
Amount due to (-) / from Central Government 848 173
Total - -

1. Basis of Preparation

The pension fund accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code
of Practice on Local Autharity Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020621 (there were
no matenal changes to the Pension Fund Account as a result of the IFRS transition).

The financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other
benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year.

2.  Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies are as follows:
Contributions

Contributions represent the total amount receivable from the Authority and
pensionable employees. The contributions are made at rales determined by the
Government Actuary's Department. The employer's contributions are set at a rate of
37.3% of pensicnable pay for the 1992 Firefighter's Pension Scheme and Retained
Modified Schame, 27 4% for the 2006 Firefighter's Pension Scheme and 28.8% for the
2015 Firefighter's Pension Scheme, The employee’s contributions are set on a sliding
scale of 11.0% to 17.0%, B.5% to 12.5% and 11% to 14.5% respectively.

The Authority is also required to make payments into the Pension Fund in respect of
ill-health retirements when they are granted.

Benefits
Benefits are aceounted for in the year in which they become due for payment.
Transfer Values

Transfer values are those sums payable by or receivable from other pension schemes
and relate to periods of previous pensienable employment.

Transfers are accounted for on a receipts and payments basis,
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bAeceruals

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or
incurred, not as money happens to be received or paid.

Actuarial Gains and Losses

Far a defined benefit scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise
because events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last
valuation (experience gains or losses) or the acluarial assumptions have changed.

BActuarial Valuation

A valuation by an actuary on behalf of a pension fund of assets held, estimate of the
present value of benefits to be paid and estimate of required future contributions,

Amortisation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful
economic life of an intangible asset, whether arising from use, effluxion of time or
obsolescence through tachnical or other changes.

Budget
The Authority’s plans and policies expressed in financial terms.
Capital Adjustment Account

A capital reserve that reflects the difference between the cost of property, plant and
equipment consumed and the capital financing sel aside to pay for them.

Capital Charge

A charge to the revenue aceount to reflect the cost of property, plant and equipment
used,

Capital Expenditure

Expenditure on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment or expenditure which
adds to and not merely maintains the value of existing property, plant and equipment.

Capital Grant

Grant from Central Government used to finance capital schemes.
Capital Receipts

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets.

Cash

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are investments that mature within three months or less from the
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.
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Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
The principal accountancy body dealing with local autherity finance.
Collection Fund

A fund administered by Durham County Council and Darlingten Borough Council in
which individuals’ Council Tax payments are paid. The Authority raises precepts on
the funds to finance part of net revenue expenditure.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The account through which to implement the accruals basis for recording the precept
without affecting the bottom line for taxpayers.

Component Accounting

Component accounting requires that where an asset has several components, which
can be physically separated from the principal asset and which have significantly
different useful lives, these should be recognised separately and should be
depreciated based on their respective useful lives. Component accounting aims to
improve depreciation accounting and improve the measurement of operating results

Contingency
The sum of money set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure or liability.
Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain fulure events not whelly within the control of the Authority, or
where a provision would otherwise be made, but either it is not probable that an outflow

of resources will be required, or the amount of the cbligation cannot be measured
raliably.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events nol wholly within the control of the Authority.

Council Tax

The local tax levied on householders, based on the relative market values of property,
which halps to fund local sarvices.

Creditors

Persons or bodies to whom sums are owed by the Authority.
Current Assets

Iltems that can be readily converted into cash.

Current Liabilities

Items that are due immediately or in the short-term.
Debtors

Persons or bodies who owe sums to the Authority.
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Deferred Liabilities

Liabilities which by arrangement are payable beyond the next year at some point in
the future or paid off by an annual sum over a peried of time.

Depreciation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful
economic life of a property, plant or equipment, whether arising from use, effluxion of
time or obsolescence through technical or other changes.

Earmarked Reserves
These represent monies set aside that can only be used for a specific purpose.
Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year
end. They include salary, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
manetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an expense in the year
in which the employee renders service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost
of the benefit earned by an employee but not taken before the year end. The accrual
is charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of Services, but then reversed out
through the Movement in Reserves Statemant.

Financial Instruments

Any conitract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
aquity instrument of another.

Financial Regulations

A written code of procedures approved by the Authority imtended to provide a
framework for proper financial manageament.

GAD - The Government Actuaries Department
They provide estimates of the liabilities of the Firefighter's Pension Scheme.
Government Grants

Assistance by Government in the form of cash in return for past or fulure compliance
with certain conditions relating to the activities of the Authority.

Impairment

A reduction in the value of an asset from the Balance Sheet value occurring as a result
of a change in the condition and consumption of the assel or as a result of market
conditions.

Interest Income
The monay earned from the investment of surplus cash.
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The Authority's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
following statutory accounting standards adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB):

« International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
. Internaticnal Accounting Standards (|AS)
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. Interpretations of the Intemnational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC)
. Interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)

Leasing

A method of financing capital expenditure where a rental charge for an asset is paid
for a specific period. There are two main types of lease: finance leases’ which transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, and other leases,
which are known as ‘operating leases’. With finance leases, assets acquired are
included within the property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet at the market
value of the asset involved, monies owing to the lessor are included within deferred
liabilities on the Balance Sheet. With an operating lease an annual rent is charged to
the relevant service revenue account.

Minimum Revenue Provision
The minimum amaun! which must be charged in year for the repayment of debt.
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)

The business rate in the pound is the same for all non-domestic ratepayers and is set
annually by the government Income from business rates goes into a Central
Government pool that is then distributed to authorities according to resident population.

Met Book Value

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e, their historical
cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.

Net Current Replacement Cost

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in
its existing use; i.e. the cost of replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset adjusted
to reflact the current condition of the existing assel.

Non-Operational Assets

Property, plant and equipment not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery
of services, These are assels under construction and surplus assets held for disposal,

Operational Assets

Froperty, plant and equipment held and eccupied, used or consumed by the Authority
in the direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary
responsibility,

Outturn
The actual amount spent in the financial year.
Payments in Advance

These represent paymeants prior to 31st March for supplies and services received after
15t April.

Precept Income

The Authority obtains part of its income from precepts levied on its billing authorities
(Durham County Council and Darington Borough Council). Precepts, based on the

96



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Council Tax base of each council, are levied on a collection fund, admimistered
saparately by each council.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

PFI contracts are agreements to receive services where the responsibility for making
available the assets needed to provide the services passes to the PFl contractor.
Where the Authority controls the services that are provided under a PF| scheme, and
ownership of the assets will pass to the Authority at the end of the contract, for no
additional charge, the Authority camies the assets used under the contract on its
Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment. The original recognition of
these assets at fair value is balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due
to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible and intangible assets that yield benafits to the authority and the services it
provides for a period of more than one year.

Provisions

Sums sel aside to meet any liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred,
but uncertain as to the amounts or dates on which they will anise.

Receipts in Advance

These represent income received prior to 31st March for supplies and services
provided after 1st April.

Reserves

Sums set aside for purposes falling cutside the definition of a “provision’. There are
two categories of reserves - see ‘Usable Reserves' and ‘Unusable Reserves’ for further
definition.

Retirement Benefits

All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by
employees that are payable after the completion of employment.

Revaluation Researve

Capital reserve to hold unrealised revaluation gains arising (since 1 April 2007) from
holding property, plant and equipment.

Revenue Contributions to Capital

Contribution from revenue to finance capital expenditure, thus reducing the
requirement to borrow.

Revenue Expenditure and Income

Expenditure and income arising from the day to day operation of the Authority's
Service.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Any grants receivable, including capital, that are applied to REFCUS will be accounted
for as revenue granis in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Income is posted to the line that the qualifying expenditure is charged to.
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Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
GGeneral governmeant grant to assist in financing the overall net cost of services.
Running Expenses

All expenses other than those relating to employees and the financing costs of capital
expenditure (capital financing costs and revenue contributions). Running expenses
inclede expenditure on maintenance of buildings, consumable supplies, transport etc.

Termination Benefits

Amounts payable as a result of a decision to terminate an officer's employment before
the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy.
They are charged on an accruals basis to the Net Cost of Service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

UK GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Standards

As IFRS is primarily drafted for the commercial sector and therefore does not address
all accounting issues relevant to local government in the UK, the Code prescribes a
hierarchy of alternative standards on which the accounting treatment and disclosures
should be based where appropriata. The hierarchy comprises:

*  Financial Reporting Standards (FRS)

* otatements of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAF)

=  Pronouncements of the Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF)

Unusable Reserves

Reserves the Authority is not able to use to provide services e.g. reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses, e.g. the Revaluation Reserve, where amounts would only
become available to provide services if the assets are sold.

Usable Reserves

Reserves that may be used to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a
prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use, e.g. Capital
Modemisation Resarve.
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